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Vision

To be the preeminent providers of public risk capital and the preferred funding partner in affordable housing.
 

Mission
 

We mobilise risk mitigating development finance in dynamic collaboration with a boundary-less network 
of public and private sector partners in affordable housing finance.

Vision & Mission

Kliptown

Kliptown
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In the past year the global economy has been experiencing unfortold and the worst financial crisis since the great depression of 
the 1930’s. The trigger to the meltdown in the world capital markets was the so-called sub-prime mortgage debt market failure 
which started in the US and reverberated throughout the whole of the western world at the beginning of the second quarter of 
2008.

Whereas like many other emerging middle income countries the South African economy was largely immune from the worst 
effects of this initial meltdown, it was nonetheless adversely affected by the crisis. This is due largely to trade and capital market 
integration with the rest of the world. The negative sentiments saw our local banks tightening their lending policies and investors 
generally running to safe havens for their investment portfolios. The effect of this has been a generalised credit squeeze which 
has affected corporate and household sectors alike.

It is against this backdrop that GPF sought to implement its very ambitious new strategy this financial year. This strategy sought 
to respond to the changing dynamics of the low cost housing market and the reprioritization of the government policies with 
increased emphasis on integrated sustainable human settlements. In this new strategic position we adopted a two pronged 
approach. While maintaining our initial focus of normalising the social housing market, we extended our strategic reach to play 
an anchoring and facilitation role in enabling the private sector to increase its funding activities in partnership with GPF to the 
integrated or mixed housing developments. We are proud of our achievements in very hard times. We committed R87 million 
over the budget of R54 million which we set for ourselves at the beginning of the financial year. Through this we leveraged some 
R266 million of private sector counter-party funds.This compares well with the R265 million of private sector funding realized in 
the previous financial year from our investment of R84 million. 

With our new strategy we redesigned our product portfolio and came up with a new product set and developed new innovative 
financing initiatives. One of these initiatives is the Sustainable Housing Equity Fund (SHEF) for which we aim to raise R250 million in 
public funds to leverage some R5 billion of private sector funding over the period of three years. The MEC for Housing, Honourable 
Nomvula Mokonyane alluded to this new strategy and applauded GPF for financial innovation in her budget presentation to the 
Gauteng Provincial Legislature in July 2008. This is surely a very ambitious plan in the light of many challenges imposed by the 
current unfavourable credit situation and the expected length of the economic downturn.

In changing the way we do business we certainly sought to position ourselves as a critical component of the overall Gauteng 
government housing delivery outfit. The critical piece of our strategy has always been the building of relationships with financial 
institutions, developers, housing investment companies and local government structures. In this endeavour we have been 
unequivocally successful as we have previously reported. We are now poised to utilise these partnerships to speed up affordable 
housing delivery.

This financial year was indeed full of challenges, some of which we already experienced during the previous period. While there 
has been some relief by way of lending rates reduction, we have seen more tighter lending criteria by the banks which have 
squeezed the majority of the new prospective home owners out of the housing ownership market. This has meant higher demand 
for rental stock but at an ever increasing rental charges, thus squeezing most people out of affordability range. Investment in the 
low end of the market has therefore declined thus leading to decline in our funding volumes. We are hopeful though that the 
cumulative effect of the rate declines will effectively bring about some relief and enable us to increase our funding footprint. We 
are nevertheless wary of the spiraling cost of construction materials, the situation which we hope the government will seek to 
reverse.

I wish to thank all who have worked tirelessly with us to realize our goals in these very tough times. Our partners in the banks, 
developers, social housing companies and housing investment companies in general deserve special mention. I wish to further 
thank our board of trustees for the sterling work in steering the GPF in these very trying times. They have indeed made outstanding 
contribution to both strategic guidance and the high governance standards we have in place in GPF. During the year Mr Mutle 
Mogase resigned his position on the Board. His energetic contributions in the service of GPF will sorely be missed by all of us. I 
am honoured to announce the appointment of Mr Pakie Mphahlele as our new member of the Board. We are looking forward to 
his professional input to the work of the organization and welcome his extensive experience in financing arena.

Report of the Chairperson
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Our executive and management team led by the CEO, Mr Kutoane Kutoane deserves praise for working hard to realise our 
strategic goals in a very difficult environment with immense challenges which I have already alluded to. I therefore extend my 
gratitude to the whole management and staff at GPF for work well done.

It gives me great pleasure to express our sincere gratitude to the Gauteng Department of Housing personnel who have 
continuously kept a keen interest in our work and provided us with invaluable assistance in the interpretation of policy to enable 
us to achieve desired performance.

M Phaweni (Chairperson)

Report of the Chairperson
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Brickfields InnerCity Jhb
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The Housing Challenge: Past and Present

Provision of adequate, decent and affordable housing remains one of the primary challenges of our democracy. In order to 
appreciate the role of GPF within the overall government housing delivery strategy we need to contextualise the housing 
challenge first as a result of the historical legacy of apartheid. The apartheid regime used housing as one of its primary separatist 
mechanisms.  Various laws prohibiting permanent settlement in urban areas were enacted, such as the Group Areas Act of 1950 
(Act No. 41 of 1950); and other numerous pieces of influx control legislation. 

The government replaced the racially based influx control policies with the “Orderly Urbanization” policy in the late 1980’s in 
response to the housing situation declining into chaos. In the early 1990’s, under the inspiration of the Urban Foundation, a 
standardization capital subsidy was introduced as means of financing the orderly settlement of poor households on peri-urban 
land. In 1994 the newly elected Government of National Unity embarked upon the ambitious Reconstruction and Development 
Programme (RDP). One of the stated aims of the programme was the reintegration of South African cities.

The National Housing Policy is based on the notion of housing as a variety of processes through which habitable, stable and 
sustainable public and private residential environments are created for viable households and communities. This recognises that 
the environment within which a house is situated is as important as the house itself in satisfying the needs and requirements of 
the households. Freedom of choice in tenure is also equally important.

Within the overall national housing policy major strides have been made and impressive results have been achieved in redressing 
the housing backlogs. However, there have been many challenges facing housing delivery and the magnitude of their impact 
differs across geographic areas. Gauteng being the province with the largest economy has experienced massive influx of migrants 
from the rural outlands and the neighbouring countries. This phenomenon has resulted in sprawling of informal settlements in 
and around the major economic centres, with resultant tensions culminating in the worst ever xenophobic violence. This could 
be attributed partly to housing delivery crisis and unemployment situation in the country. There have also been many protests 
by the poor households against the government in response to what is perceived as slow pace of housing delivery. All in all we 
have seen immense pressures being brought to bear on the orderly delivery of sustainable human settlements, and the housing 
backlogs have worsened as a result.

Many other challenges relate to institutional issues such as poor delivery mechanism and lack of capacity at municipal level, 
economic crises of confidence and impending recession which has compelled the banks to shy away from financing in the low 
income housing market. All these are being addressed by the government quite aggressively.

The government is committed to a housing process built on the foundations of people centred development and partnerships. 
This principle calls on all players to contribute their skills, labour, creativity, financial, and other resources to the housing process, 
in partnership with one another. Government housing policy is therefore develop and facilitate. Through legislation, the 
provision of subsidies, and through the creation of appropriate institutional frameworks and support structures, government 
seeks to create an enabling environment. The Breaking New Ground (BNG) policy with its vision of creating sustainable human 
settlements is a key element of this South African Housing strategy. 

Report of the Chief Executive Officer



14 GautengPartnershipFund 2009

The Role of Gauteng Partnership Fund (GPF)

GPF is one of the critical mechanisms created by the Gauteng Department of Housing (GDoH) to put up public funds as first 
layer risk capital so as to entice the private sector funding into the area that is otherwise perceived as high risk by improving the 
financial leverage. This is in line with the overall government desire to utilise partnerships in providing affordable housing. In 
doing this we align fully with the BNG policy outlined above and totally embrace the call for establishment of sustainable human 
settlements. This is evident from our extended strategic focus which involves enticing private capital and developers to invest in 
integrated housing developments as well as easing the financing burden by providing public high risk capital.

In line with our new strategic impetus we have designed the Sustainable Housing Equity Fund (SHEF). The central objective of this 
stand alone fund is to attract private equity institutions to put up risk money alongside GPF’s public funds in a partnership that 
will provide a blend of equity cushion for integrated housing developments. We have committed R250 million of government 
funds over the next three years, with the intent of raising a further R750 million in private equity funds. SHEF will specify the 
minimum percentage of the total development that must cater for the target beneficiary group, being households with monthly 
incomes between R3 500 and R10 000 (2009/10). We believe this should be no less than the equity portion contributed by GPF.

We have also embarked on a new marketing strategy which aims to proactively promote GPF and its activities in the target 
market. We view our visibility in the market to be of utmost importance, and to this end we have redesigned our corporate 
identity to give us more market relevance and to say to the public “we are serious about affordable housing delivery”.

In order to achieve more from our strategic goals we increased our focus on staff development issues and increased our training 
spend substantially. We also designed the modern performance management system with the more transparent performance 
reward programme. The Board established the Remuneration Committee which worked hard to establish the new remuneration 
standards with increased benefits to staff which were hitherto non-existent. We believe that with this new remuneration and 
performance structure we will be able to attract the best of breed in skill to implement our very ambitious delivery plan.

During this financial year we funded about R87 million in the affordable housing sector, the bulk of which went to social housing.  
From this we were able to leverage some R266 million of private sector funding, which was consistent with our plans. From 
the total investment due to GPF intervention we facilitated provision of 4 538 dwelling units, which is commendable given the 
extremely adverse conditions in the credit markets as a result of the global financial meltdown and the prevailing concomitant 
negative sentiment within our capital market. We believe more could have been achieved otherwise.

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

BNG elements

1. Supporting the entire residential
                   property market

2. Moving from housing to sustainable 
                   human settlements

3. Using existing and new housing 
                   instruments

4. Adjusting institutional arrangements       
                   within government

5. Building institutions and capacity

6. Defining financial arrangements

7. Creating jobs and housing

8. Building information, communication 
                   and awareness

9. Establishing systems for monitoring 
                   and evaluation

BNG objectives

1. Accelerate the delivery of housing as a 
                   key strategy for poverty alleviation

2. Utilise the provision of housing as a 
                   major job creation strategy

3. Ensure that property can be accessed 
                   by all as an asset for wealth creation 
                  and empowerment

4. Leverage growth in the economy

5. Combat crime, promote social cohesion 
                  and improve quality of life for the poor

6. Support the functioning of the entire 
                  single residential property market to      
                  reduce duality within the sector, by  
                  breaking the barriers between the first 
                 economy residential property boom        
                 and the second economy slump.

7. Utilize housing as an instrument for the  
                 development of sustainable human    
                 settlements, in support of spatial            
                 restructuring

The following are BNG nine elements or interventions, and seven objectives:
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Below we present our achievements to date which are surprisingly closely in line with our founding mandate:
 

2003/9 Performance                                                                                                        

2008/9 Performance

 

 Units Facilitated
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I wish to take this opportunity to thank the Chairperson of the Board, Ms Magapa Phaweni for her exemplary leadership, and 
the entire Board of Trustees for their able strategic guidance. I also wish to extend my appreciation to the members of Team 
Housing at GDoH whose lively debate on housing issues have helped shape my thinking on various policy issues. Our partners 
in the banking fraternity, developers, municipalities and housing investors in general whom we have partnered with deserve a 
special vote of thanks, and we hope to count on their commitment to sustainable partnership as we move forward in tackling the 
national housing challenge. It is my special pleasure to express my deep-felt gratitude to my colleagues in the executive for their 
hard work in assisting me steer this ship to success. I am also grateful to the whole management and staff for their commitment 
and hard work. I know we can always count on your commitment.

K Kutoane (Chief Executive Officer)

Report of the Chief Executive Officer
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Manners Mansion InnerCity Jhb
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Performance Overview for 2008/9

Overall the GPF has achieved its major strategic objective for 2008/9 financial year, to facilitate the delivery of affordable housing 
units to the low income earning members of the population (household earning less than R9 600 per month) within the context 
of sustainable integrated housing programmes. In doing so, GPF has to gear and attract fair priced commercial funding for 
affordable housing projects in Gauteng for the target market despite various challenges. Notable challenges faced by our clients 
and partners have been the impact of rising interest rates, building cost escalation and the global “credit crunch”. Despite these 
challenges GPF has committed a total investment of R87 million vs. a budget of R54 million leveraging a total of R266 million 
private sector funding for projects. 

B Muvevi
(Chief Investment Officer)

Operations Report
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Definitions of terms:

•	 Committed	Value	–	This	means	the	total	GPF	Board	approved	Rand	value	investment	for	the	project.
•	 Facilitated	Units	–	This	means	the	total	number	of	houses/	units	that	can	be	yielded	from	the	project	as	a	result	of	the		
 total project funding. 
•	 Completed	Units	–	These	are	houses/	units	that	would	be	deemed	or	certified	complete.		

Sustainability of funded projects

Parallel to our developmental objectives, we aim to increase the participation of BBBEE entrepreneurs and ensuring we achieve 
sustainability of at least 70% of funded projects. In most of our funded projects, building is progressing well and loan repayment 
has started on completed projects. Throughout the project life cycle the issue of sustainability is critical as reflected by the robust 
evaluation, credit risk management, project and contract monitoring process we employ. 

The summary of performance is further illustrated in Graph A, B & C below: 

Operations Report

 Graph C – Completed units

Graph A - Committed Value                             

Graph B - Facilitated Units
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Key Performance Areas 
(Programmes)

1.  Rental Housing Fund 
     (focused on for-profit     
      entities)

2. Social Housing Fund 
     (focused on non-profit         
      entities)

3. Management of       
     Institutional Subsidy   
     program

4. Risk Participation    
     Facility

Goal

To enhance the debt 
/ equity ratio for proj-
ects such that com-
panies can raise com-
mercial 
funding.

To reduce the cost of 
capital for projects 
linked to institutional 
subsidies.

To reduce the capital 
cost of projects and, 
to allow for lower 
affordable rentals.

To facilitate the 
sustainable entry 
of Banks through 
sharing of 
financing risk.

Reason for
 variance

The Fund did not meet 
the target for funding 
commitment and units 
because applications 
that we received could 
not fit our mandate. This 
was attributed by high 
interest rates and esca-
lating building costs.

The fund performed very 
well exceeding targets 
of funding commitment 
and anticipated units.

The completed units 
were below budget be-
cause most of the proj-
ects are greenfields that 
take longer to complete. 

The fund committed the 
budgeted funding to 
projects.  

The anticipated units 
were exceeded because 
the majority of the proj-
ects were brownfields 
that yield more units for 
less capital. 
The completed units also 
exceeded budget due to 
carry over of units from 
the previous year.

We did not budget any 
funding commitment or 
delivery of units. 
However the sub pro-
gramme bridging facility, 
which is a revolving fund, 
facilitated 821 units.

Output

Committed Value

Facilitated units

Completed units

Committed Value

Facilitated units

Completed units

Committed Value

  

Facilitated units

Completed units

Committed Value

  

Facilitated units

Completed units

Target for 
2008/2009

R9m

300

120

R25m

375

700

R170m

1200

480

-

-

-

Actual 
performance for 
2008/2009

R 3.7m

63

40

R53m

965

337

R170m

2357

1493

-

821

-

Objective 1: Facilitating a Leveraged Development Financing process of R5 billion by 2011

This we seek to achieve by taking the first risk position through structured funding instruments which have a character of equity for 
affordable housing projects. In assessing GPF performance as illustrated in Graph A, the leveraging of private sector funding is the primary 
measure, in facilitating affordable housing units. This benchmark is linked to a specific amount to be invested, projected and completed 
housing units per annum as shown by Table A below:

Operations Report
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Operations Report

Key Performance Areas 
(Programmes)

5. Development Finance     
     Facility  

6. Sustainable Housing 
     Equity Fund

7. Inner City Property 
     Fund

Goal

To share the 
financial risk 
with financial 
institutions in 
bridging finance/ 
equity funding for 
affordable housing 
projects. Focus 
on development 
phase

To share  financial 
risk with financial 
institutions in 
equity funding for 
sustainable
 integrated 
developments 

To facilitate faster 
delivery of inner 
city housing units 
through 
“packaging 
projects” for 
onward sale to 
housing investors. 

Reason for
variance

The committed funding 
to the SBSA facility ex-
ceeded the budget be-
cause of the anticipated 
high demand for project 
funding. 

The facilitated units are 
based on R20 million of 
the R90 million ABSA / 
GPF facility signed in the 
previous year.  There are 
no completed units be-
cause the project fund-
ing is yet to be drawn 
down.

The objective was 
achieved. The Business 
case (Fund Structure 
& modelling) was ap-
proved by Board and 
GDoH.

We did not anticipate 
delivering any units in 
the year.

The fund was put on 
hold pending further 
investigation on imple-
mentation and budget 
availability.

Output

Committed Value

Facilitated units

Completed units

Committed Value

Facilitated units

Completed units

Committed Value 

Facilitated units
Completed units

Target for 
2008/2009

R20m 
 

500
  

200

R250m

-

-

R50m

200
80

Actual
performance for 
2008/2009

R30m

332 

-

GPF Board 
committed R50m 
and GDoH R200m  
which totals 
R250m

-

-

-

-
-

1. The Rental Housing Fund

     The Rental Housing Fund is used to enhance the debt / equity ratio to projects. The following projects were supported during the      
     2008/2009 financial year:

                Project                   GPF’s Committed Value  Other Funding        Total Units Completed Units

               Lubraco                                R  3 700 000                        R 9 733 154                  63                              40
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Operations Report

Subsidy amount

R 9 140 000

R4 981 300

R18 032 976
R27 299 922
R12 156 200

R14 943 900

R2 671 552
R17 907 747
R2 467 800
R3 381 800
R1 690 900
R2 604 900
R1 736 600
R51 200 000
R170 215 597 

Project

Pennyville

Allenby

City Deep 
Roodepoort
Orlando Ekhaya

Tau Village

Res doc
BG Alexander
Stanhope
Crest Mansions
Gaelic Mansions
Smitshof
Rondebosch
Kibler Park
Total

Completed units

Accounted for under 
Social Housing Fund
Accounted for under 
Social Housing Fund
337
216
Accounted for under 
Social Housing Fund
Accounted for under 
Social Housing Fund
64
354
108
148
74
116
76
-
1493

Total units

Accounted for under 
Social Housing Fund
Accounted for under 
Social Housing Fund
654
432
Accounted for under 
Social Housing Fund
Accounted for under 
Social Housing Fund
64
429
108
148
74
116
76
256
2357

2. The Social Housing Fund (SHF)

     The fund reduces the cost of capital for projects, thereby enhancing the cash flows for housing institutions that are not-for-profit and     
     who undertake mixed income projects. The following projects were supported:

                Project                  GPF’s Committed Value   Other funding         Total units Completed units

               Allenby                          R  3 270 000              R   2 648 700                       109                          65
               Pennyville                   R  8 063 710              R 23 114 843                       200                  100
               Orlando Ekhaya          R12 888 948              R 39 636 998                       266                   60
               Tau Village                   R  9 000 000                            R    6 056 100     109                           -
               Hlanganani                  R20 000 000                            R  65 000 000     281                         112
               Total                              R53 222 658               R 136 456 641                   965                    337

    Capacity Funding is part of the Social Housing Fund. The funding is provided as either grant or interest free loans to social housing 
    institutions in order to boost their management capacity that will ultimately lead to financial self-sustainability.  The following 
    highlights the institution supported and funds committed over 2008/9.

                  Institution                                 Committed Funding
               
                  Yeast Community Housing              R  945 000 

3. Management of the Institutional Subsidy Program

Institutional Housing is defined as a housing option for low income persons (from R2 500 to R7 000) at a level of scale and built form 
which requires institutionalized management and which is provided by accredited social housing institutions. Institutional housing 
projects	are	mainly	undertaken	by	Section	21	–	not-for-profit	Companies.	The	tenure	offered	in	an	Institutional	housing	project	is	
rental, co-operative ownership, instalment sale and rent-to-own. Institutional housing projects are funded through a mixture of 
government grants and private sector funding. The government grants consist of the institutional subsidy. The aim of institutional 
subsidy is to reduce the cost of capital for projects linked to institutional subsidies. 

    Since 1st of April 2007 GPF was tasked by the GDoH with the management, evaluation and facilitation of the institutional subsidy 
    program. The motivations or proposals are submitted to GDoH’s Housing Advisory Committee (HAC) for the MEC approval of 
    institutional subsidies. The following projects were approved for 2008/9:
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4. Risk Participation Facility

     The fund facilitates the sustainable entry of banks through sharing financing risk for housing developments. It allows for an interest  
     rate blending resulting in a reduced interest rate for housing project finance. We did not budget any funding commitment over the  
     2008/9 because there has been minimal movement on the Standard bank and ABSA facility’s in comparison to the previous years. 

The following Funds are sub programmes of the Risk Participation Facility:

4.1 Intuthuko Fund

       This programme is offered through the Trust for Urban Housing Finance (TUHF). The purpose of the fund is to provide soft funding            
       to emerging entrepreneurs providing small-scale housing in the inner cities. The R2 million pilot programme for the Intuthuko Fund 
       proved to be a success, and this has resulted in approval of a second tranche of R8 million to enable a full roll out of the programme  
       in 2008/9. No projects have drawn down on the fund as yet. 

4.2 Bridging Facility

The bridging facility is aimed at addressing the requirements of the inner cities’ private investor need for quick responses to property 
financing (purchase of property, rates clearance costs and construction loans) for the rental sector. The bridging finance facility is a 
partnership with TUHF established in 2006. The fund was fully capitalised by GPF for an amount of R25 million and structured as a 
revolving fund and TUHF manages the facility.  The following list of projects has been funded by the bridging facility in 2008/9: 

Committed 
Funding

R1 432 898
R11 500 000
R400 000  
R1 250 000  
R101 448
R300 000
R312 500
R3 000 000
R1 250 000
R9 150 000
R28 696 846

Total units

66
96
-
51
-
-
35
72
74
427
821

Projects

Dolphin Square
Rashers
Mooikloof
Vita Court
Boxing Club
Basement
Ivanhoe
68 Nugget
Briley and Pretoria
Queen Park
Total

4.3 TUHF Securitisation

       The purpose of the facility is to assist TUHF in leveraging commercial funding for on-lending to inner-city investors contributing to   
       urban regeneration and entrepreneurship development. The transaction entails securitization arrangement through creation of  
       various funding mechanisms and instruments of differing rankings. The complexity of the transaction facility has seen the past year 
       dedicated to drafting of the legal agreements and refining the transaction structure to accommodate various stakeholders.       
       Although this R30 million Facility was approved by the GPF board in 2006 financial year, the structure and legal documents have just 
       been finalised and the transaction seems to have weathered the subprime crisis. We have limited our commitment to the 
       securitisation transaction until end of July 2009.  

Operations Report

Tshedzani Roodepoort
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GPF’s Committed 
Funding

R1 571 649
R12 613
R196 918
R1 669 984
R3 451 164

Projects

Mabopane
Olievenhoutbosch
Alveda Extension 2 Township
Olievenhoutbosch
Total 

ABSA Commited 
Funding

R5 500 772
R4 414 677    
R671 503
R5 844 945
R16 431 897

Total Units

202
52
8
70
332

5. Development Finance Facility

     The aim of the Facility is to share financial and developmental risk with developers for affordable housing projects. This is short term     
     loans or bridging finance for projects aimed at increasing the supply of new affordable housing stock in the market. 

     This facility offers development finance for integrated residential developments to residential property developers for the acquisition  
     of land, installation of services and/ or top structures for sale, rental, instalment sale or other tenure options in Gauteng. 

     GPF / ABSA R90 million Facility - A total of R20 million has been committed by ABSA on the projects listed below:

     We are currently finalising the Standard bank facility agreement which is structured as follows: facility total R135 million, of which 
     R30 million is from GPF and R105 million from Standard Bank. 

6. Sustainable Housing Equity Fund

The aim of the fund is to mobilise private sector equity funds to blend with GPF public risk capital so as to provide a balanced risk 
sharing arrangement among the participants in the fund. The equity funds will then be utilised to leverage debt funding for integrated 
housing developments. This facility offers equity finance for integrated residential developments to residential property developers 
for the acquisition of land, installation of services and/ or top structures for sale, rental, instalment sale or other tenure options in 
Gauteng. 

At the beginning of the year we outlined key milestones towards setting up the fund that needed to be achieved over the 2008/9 
financial period. These have all been achieved and listed below as follows:

					•	 Appointment	of	transaction	advisors	(PWC)
					•	 Fund	Structure	approval
					•	 Business	case	approval	by	Board	and	GDoH
					•	 Compliance	with	legislative	process	(Treasury	engagement	is	outstanding)
					•	 Commitment	of	funding	R250	million	(GPF	–R50	million	and	GDoH	–	R200	million)

In 2009/10 we look forward to engage with treasury for compliance with legislative process, drafting and finalising the legal 
documentation as part of setting up of the fund. We also intend to finalise our investment information memorandum and conduct 
private placement road shows to investors and stakeholders of the Fund. 

Operations Report

Tshedzani Roodepoort



25GautengPartnershipFund 2009

7. Inner City Affordable Housing Fund

The aim of the Fund is to facilitate faster delivery of inner city housing units through “packaging projects” for onward sale to housing 
investors. The concept needed to be further explored in addressing the alignment with other initiatives, partners and stakeholders 
budget. We will be reviewing the business case for this initiative during the 2009/10 financial year.

Summary of Performance 2008/9:
(Note Graph D excludes institutional subsidies funding commitment of R170 million)

Budget vs Actual Operational Expenditure as at 31 March 2009

Operational costs                                 2008/09
Budgeted                                                 R21,388,134
Actual                                                        R17,133,446
Variance                                                    R4,254,688

The variance of was attributed to the following:
Consulting fees - variance due to lesser than anticipated projects;
Marketing - marketing strategy implemented late in the year;
Travel - variance due to lesser than anticipated projects.

Graph E - Facilitated Units                                                                                                     Graph F - Completed Units

Graph D - Funding Committed

Total Rand Value

Development Facility Fund

Risk Participation Fund

Social Housing Fund

Rental Housing Fund

Approved Funding

Budget Units Budget Units

Budget

Facilitated Units Completed Units

R 0
R 0

Operations Report
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Pharoe Park Germiston InnerCity 
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Risk management

An independent risk management process is in place to enable Management to effectively identify, evaluate and assess risk. CURA risk 
software is utilised by the Gauteng Partnership Fund (GPF) as a risk management tool. Continuous review and consultation with Internal 
Audit and senior management culminated in the preparation of the risk matrix which was subsequently approved by the Board of 
Trustees. The risk matrix sets out the process for capturing all relevant risks through five key stages; identification, assessment, monitoring, 
mitigation and reporting. Management of GPF and Internal Audit keep the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management framework 
and systems of internal control under continuous review. Internal Audit takes into consideration the risk matrix when planning their 
internal audits. Internal Audit has direct access to the CEO, the Audit Committee and the Board of Trustees.

Corporate Governance

The Gauteng Partnership Fund (GPF) is managed and controlled by a unitary Board of Trustees appointed in terms of a trust deed. The 
trustees have fiduciary duties and obligations in terms of the trust deed. The CEO is the only executive trustee. With regard to systems and 
controls, these include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and 
adequate segregation of duties. In addition, all necessary structures, policies and procedures are in place in order to ensure compliance 
with the requirements of the PFMA and all other relevant legislation. This includes a comprehensive suite of policies, an Independent 
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, a Fraud Prevention Plan and Internal Auditors.

Internal Financial Control

The Board of Trustees has overall responsibility for the GPF system of internal control and is accountable for reviewing their effectiveness. 
Internal control systems are designed to manage risks within the GPF rather than totally eliminate the potential failure to achieve the GPF 
objectives. The Board has delegated to the CEO and senior management the requirement for oversight, establishment and implementation 
of appropriate systems of internal control. These systems are monitored continously throughout the year by both Management and 
Internal Audit.

Operations Report

K Govender
(Chief Financial Officer)
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Operations Report

Human Resource Management

General HR overview 

The employees of GPF are of utmost importance to its success which is why the core function of the Human Resources unit 
is to ensure the Fund achieves its strategic objectives. This is achieved through careful management of the performance and 
development of each individual through an ongoing consultative process. 

During 2008/9 the Fund reviewed its remuneration structure to provide employees with additional benefits. These additional 
benefits reflect GPF’s aspiration to attract and retain high caliber individuals as well as to ensure GPF remains an employer of 
choice. 

The Fund Performance Management System was given a complete overhaul during 2008/9 which has resulted in the 
implementation of a comprehensive system that incentivises superior individual performance. GPF is a learning organisation 
where employees at all levels are given the opportunity to expand their capacity to achieve their desired results. Managers at 
GPF are considered a source for learning as they strive to develop team members by providing them with the knowledge and 
skills to reach their full potential. During the reporting period 3 employees received bursaries for furthering their education 
through tertiary institutions 22 staff attended a total of 172 training days as part of the skills development strategy. GPF is proud 
to report that there were no resignations during the reporting period and six new team members were appointed. There were no 
grievances raised and one account of staff disciplinary action taken during the reporting period.
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Operations Report

GPF Organogram

Staff Profile
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Report of the Remuneration Committee

Remuneration Committee

During the reporting period the GPF Board of Trustees established a Remuneration Committee.  At the first meeting of the commit-
tee, which was held on the 2nd December 2008, the Remuneration Committee Terms of Reference was approved.

In line with the Terms of Reference, Remuneration Committee meetings are held as and when required but no less than twice a 
year. All meetings are fully documented with detailed minutes recorded.  The committee currently consists of three members, with 
a quorum for voting purposes being two members.  The CEO and the Human Resources Manager are invited to committee meet-
ings as attendees.  

The core responsibility of the Remuneration Committee is to work on behalf of the board in providing Executive Managers with 
every encouragement to enhance the company’s performance.  In addition, but not limited to, they must ensure Executive Man-
agers are fairly, but responsibly, rewarded for their individual contributions and performance and annually review the terms and 
conditions of their employment.

The table below depicts the composition of the Remuneration Committee as well as the meetings held during the 2008/9 financial 
year.

                         Members                                     Magapa Phaweni                                Devraj Chainee                                  Mongezi Mnyani
                                                                                     (Chairperson)                                         (Member)                                             (Member)
   
               Appointment date                           23 September 2008                         23 September 2008                          23 September 2008

     Meetings held during 2008/9                 2 December 2008               27 January 2009                    18 March 2009

M Phaweni (Chairperson)
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Remuneration rate:

Formal meetings = R2 484 (Chairperson), 1 508 (Audit committee member) per meeting

Audit Committee Responsibility

We report that we have adopted appropriate formal terms of reference in our charter in line with the requirements of Section 
51(1)(a) of the PFMA and the Treasury Regulation 27.1.  We further report that we have conducted our affairs in compliance with 
this charter.

The effectiveness of internal control

The system of internal control applied by the entity over financial and risk management is effective, efficient and transparent.  
In line with the PFMA and the King II Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides the Audit Com-
mittee and management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective.  This is achieved by means of 
the risk management process, as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls 
and processes.  From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the Audit Report on the Annual Financial Statements and the 
management report of the Auditor-General South Africa, it was noted that no matters were reported that indicate any material 
deficiencies in the system of internal control or any deviations therefrom.  Accordingly, we can report that the system of internal 
control over financial reporting for the period under review was efficient and effective.

Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has:

•	 Reviewed	and	discussed	the	audited	Annual	Financial	Statements	to	be	included	in	the	annual		 	
                   report, with the Auditor-General South Africa and the Accounting Officer;
•	 Reviewed	the	Auditor-General	South	Africa’s	management	report	and	management’s	
                   response thereto;
•	 Reviewed	the	entity’s	compliance	with	legal	and	regulatory	provision;
•	 Reviewed	significant	adjustments	resulting	from	the	audit.

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the Auditor-General of South Africa’s report on the Annual Financial  Statements, and 
are of the opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor-
General South Africa.

Internal audit

We are satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively and that it has addressed the risks pertinent to the entity 
in its audits.

Auditor-General South Africa

We have met with the Auditor-General South Africa to ensure that there are no unresolved issues.

E Stroebel (Chairperson of the Audit Committee)

Report of the Audit Committee

NAME OF MEMBER                      NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED

M	Mogase	(Chairperson)	–	resigned		31	October	2008	 	 					 																4	of	4

A Green - (Represented the founder Gauteng Department of Housing)                              2 of 6

K Mdlulwa                       5 of 6

Elise Stroebel (Chairperson)                      6 of 6

Audit Committee Members and Attendance

The audit committee consists of the members listed hereunder and should meet 4 times per annum as per its approved terms of 
reference.  During the current year 6 meetings were held.

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2009.
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HlangananiCosmoCity
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Report of the Auditor-General

R EPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE GAUTENG PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE ON 
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION OF THE GAUTENG 
PARTNERSHIP FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

1. I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Gauteng Partnership Fund which comprise the 
    statement of financial position as at 31 March 2009 and the statement of financial performance, the statement of changes  

in net assets and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 44 to 74.

The accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements

2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance  
with the basis of accounting determined by National Treasury as set out in accounting policy note 1 and in the manner 
required by the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and for such internal control as the 
accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

The Auditor-General’s responsibility

3. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 read with section 4 of the Public Audit      
    Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my   
    audit.

4. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing read with General Notice 616 of 2008, 
    issued in Government Gazette No. 31057 of 15 May 2008. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements      
    and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from   
    material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
    statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
    misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor con-
    siders internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design  
    audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the  
    effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
    used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
    of the financial statements.

6. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion
 
7. In my opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Gauteng Partnership 
    Fund as at 31 March 2009 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the 
    basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury as set out in accounting policy note 1 and in the manner required 

by the PFMA.

Basis of accounting

8. Without qualifying my opinion, the public entity’s policy is to prepare financial statements on the basis of accounting 
    determined by the National Treasury, as set out in accounting policy note1.

Other matters

Without qualifying my opinion, I draw attention to the following matters that relate to my responsibilities in the audi  of the 
inancial tatements:

Unaudited supplementary schedules

9. The supplementary information set out pages 75 and 76 does not form part of the financial statements and is presented as 
    additional information. I have not audited this schedule and accordingly I do not express an opinion thereon.
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Report of the Auditor-General

Governance framework

10. The governance principles that impact the auditor’s opinion on the financial statements are related to the responsibilities 
       and practices exercised by the accounting authority and executive management and are reflected in the key governance 
       responsibilities addressed below:

Key governance responsibilities

11. The PFMA tasks the accounting authority with a number of responsibilities concerning financial and risk management and 
       internal control. Fundamental to achieving this is the implementation of key governance responsibilities, which I have 
       assessed as follows:

No. Matter Y N 

Clear trail of supporting documentation that is easily available and provided in a timely manner 

1. No significant difficulties were experienced during the audit concerning delays or 
the availability of requested information.   

Quality of financial statements and related management information 

2. The financial statements were not subject to any material amendments resulting 
from the audit.   

3. The annual report was submitted for consideration prior to the tabling of the 
auditor’s report.   

Timeliness of financial statements and management information 

4. The annual financial statements were submitted for auditing as per the legislated 
deadlines (section 55 of the PFMA).   

Availability of key officials during audit 

5. Key officials were available throughout the audit process.   

Development and compliance with risk management, effective internal control and governance practices 

6. Audit committee   
 • The Fund had an audit committee in operation throughout the financial year.   

 • The audit committee operates in accordance with approved, written terms of 
reference. 

  

 • The audit committee substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as 
set out in section 77 of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 27.1.8. 

  

7. Internal audit   
 

 

• The Fund had an internal audit function in operation throughout the financial 
year.  

 

 • The internal audit function operates in terms of an approved internal audit 
plan. 

  

 • The internal audit function substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, 
as set out in Treasury Regulation 27.2. 

  

8. There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal 
control in respect of financial and risk management.   

9. There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal 
control in respect of compliance with applicable laws and regulations.   

10. The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of the 
financial statements.   

 

   

11. A risk assessment was conducted on a regular basis and a risk management 
strategy, which includes a fraud prevention plan, is documented and used as set 
out in Treasury Regulation 27.2. 

  
 

12. Delegations of responsibility are in place, as set out in section 56 of the PFMA. 
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Report of the Auditor-General

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Report on performance information

12. I have reviewed the performance information as set out on pages 18 to 25.

The accounting authority’s responsibility for the performance information

13. The accounting authority has additional responsibilities as required by section 55(2)(a) of the PFMA to ensure that the annual 
report and audited financial statements fairly present the performance against predetermined objectives of the public entity.

The Auditor-General’s responsibility

14. I conducted my engagement in accordance with section 13 of the PAA read with General Notice 616 of 2008, issued in 
Government Gazette No. 31057 of 15 May 2008 .

15. In terms of the foregoing my engagement included performing procedures of an audit nature to obtain sufficient appropriate 
evidence about the performance information and related systems, processes and procedures. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement.

16. I believe that the evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to report that no significant findings have been 
identified as a result of my review.

APPRECIATION

17. The assistance rendered by the staff of the Gauteng Partnership Fund during the audit is sincerely appreciated.

Johannesburg

23 July 2009
 

Follow-up of audit findings 

13. The prior year audit findings have been substantially addressed.    

14. SCOPA resolutions have been substantially implemented. n/a  
Issues relating to the reporting of performance information 

15. The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of a 
performance report that is accurate and complete.    

16. Adequate control processes and procedures are designed and implemented to 
ensure the accuracy and completeness of reported performance information.    

17. A strategic plan was prepared and approved for the financial year under review for 
purposes of monitoring the performance in relation to the budget and delivery by 
the Fund against its mandate, predetermined objectives, outputs, indicators and 
targets. (Treasury Regulation 29.1/30.1). 

  
 

18. There is a functioning performance management system and performance bonuses 
are only paid after proper assessment and approval by those charged with 
governance. 

  
 

 

11. A risk assessment was conducted on a regular basis and a risk management 
strategy, which includes a fraud prevention plan, is documented and used as set 
out in Treasury Regulation 27.2. 

  
 

12. Delegations of responsibility are in place, as set out in section 56 of the PFMA. 
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Kliptown
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Lubraco House InnerCity Jhb



39GautengPartnershipFund 2009

HlangananiCosmoCity
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Annual Financial Statements
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General Information

Country of incorporation and domicile 

Registered office 

Bankers 

Masters reference number
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South Africa

Ten Sixty Six Building
18th Floor
35 Pritchard Street
Johannesburg
2001

ABSA Bank Limited 

IT2422/02

DLA Cliffe Dekker Incorporated
Hofmeyer Herbstein & Gihwala Incorporated
Bhikha Incorporated Attorneys
Ramushu Morare Incorporated
Routledge Modise Attorneys
Mapulana Maponya Incorporated
Erasmus Motaung Incorporated
NF Masenamela Incorporated
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The trustees present their report for the year ended 31 March 2009. 
This report forms part of the Annual Financial Statements.

1. General review

Main business and operations

The Gauteng Partnership Fund(GPF) provides flexible and 
innovative financing solutions in partnership with the private 
sector for the development of affordable housing within 
sustainable human settlements in Gauteng. The mission of 
the Gauteng Partnership Fund is to mobilise risk mitigating 
development finance in dynamic collaboration with a 
boundary-less network of public and private sector partners 
in affordable housing finance. The GPF gears private sector 
funding from its own capital base on a project by project basis, 
this results in an enhanced debt to equity ratio for projects, 
ensuring growth and a viable return on investment. 

Private sector involvement not only eases the burden on 
government facilities but also encourages better risk sharing, 
accountability, monitoring and efficiency in the long-term 
management of projects. The Gauteng Partnership Fund 
thereby ensures that housing financiers enter the lower 
income housing market on a sustainable basis.

2. Statements of responsibility

The trustees are required to maintain adequate accounting 
records and are responsible for the content and integrity 
of the annual financial statements and related financial 
information included in this report. It is their responsibility to 
ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the 
state of affairs of the Trust as at the end of the financial year 
and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year 
then ended. The  external auditors are engaged to express an 
independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance 
with the basis of preparation as detailed in note 1 of the 
accounting policies note to the annual financial statements and 
are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently 
applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments 
and estimates.

The Trustees acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible 
for the system of internal financial control established by the 
Trust and place considerable importance on maintaining a 
strong control environment. To enable the trustees to meet 
these responsibilities, the trustees set standards for internal 
control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost 
effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation 
of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective 
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to 
ensure an acceptable level of risk.

The Trustees are of the opinion, based on the information and 
explanations given by management that the system of internal 
control provides reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that 
the financial records may be relied on for the preparation 
of the annual financial statements. Nothing has come to 
the attention of the trustees to indicate that any material 
breakdown in the functioning of these controls, procedures 
and systems has occurred during the year under review.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the 
going concern basis, since the trustees have every reason 
to believe that the Trust has adequate resources in place to 
continue in operation for the foreseeable future.

Report of the Trustees
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Report of the Trustees

Nationality

Non Executive South African
Non Executive South African
Non Executive South African 
Non Executive South African
Non Executive South African
Non Executive South African
Non Executive South African
Executive South African

Name

M Phaweni (Chairperson)
K Mdlulwa 
MC Mogase 
DC Chainee
EP Stroebel 
M Mnyani 
P Mphahlele 
K Kutoane (Chief Executive Officer)

Changes

 
Resigned 31/10/2008

Appointed 1/12/2008

3. Post balance sheet events

The trustees are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year requiring disclosure or adjust-
ment to the annual financial statements.

4. Equipment and intangibles

During the year the trust purchased equipment and intangibles to the value of R696,514 (2008: R1,101,192). The useful lives of 
the remaining assets were assessed during the year and any change has been disclosed as a change in estimate.

5. Trustees

6. Secretary

The Trust is not required to have a secretary in terms of the Trust Property Control Act.

7. Right of indemnity

At reporting date, Trust assets were sufficient to meet the Trustee’s right of indemnity out of Trust assets for liabilities incurred on 
behalf of the Trust.

8. Trust liabilities

All liabilities incurred on behalf of the Trust are liabilities of the Trust and have been included in the Trust’s statement of financial 
position.

9. Auditors

Office of the Auditor General will continue in office in accordance with the Public Audit Act,2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004).

The annual financial statements set out on pages 44 to 76 which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved 
by the board on 28th July 2009 and were signed on its behalf by:

K Kutoane (Chief Executive Officer)

M Phaweni (Chairperson)
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Statement of Financial Position

Figures in Rand                              Note(s)                            2009          2008

Assets
Non-Current Assets 
Available for sale investments                                                                                                     2                          10,035,003                                     3
Intangible assets                                 3                                181,801                        230,828
Loans and receivables                                 4                          67,213,087                  44,895,448
Property and equipment                                    5                            1,228,344                     1,241,156
                        78,658,235                  46,367,435

Current Assets
Trade and other receivables                                                                                                         6                            5,476,612                     6,255,630
Current portion - loans and receivables             4                            3,114,131                     5,316,581
Cash and cash equivalents                                                                                                           7                        511,801,713                521,834,502
                                                                                             520,392,456               533,406,713
Total Assets                                                       599,050,691               579,774,148

Trust Equity and Liabilities
Reserves
Other component of net assets                               (7,964,997)                (17,999,997)
Accumulated Surplus                                                                                                                                               323,655,279                249,431,575
                                                                                                                                                                                      315,690,282               231,431,578

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities  
Finance lease obligation                                                                                                               8                                  33,527                           78,514
Operating lease liability                                                                                                              10                                             -                           13,182
Deferred income                                                                                                                              9                          62,643,955                193,407,033
                                                                                                                                                                                         62,677,482               193,498,729

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables                                                                                                            11                              762,548                   33,983,922
Current portion - finance lease obligation                                                                              8                                  44,987                           39,336
Current portion - operating lease liability                                                                             10                                 13,182                            32,328
Current Portion - deferred income                                                                                             9                       218,850,353                120,023,666
Provisions                                                                                                                                         12                            1,011,857                        764,589
                                                                                                                                                                                       220,682,927               154,843,841
Total Liabilities                                                                                                                                                              283,360,409               348,342,570
Total Net Assets and Liabilities                                                                                                                             599,050,691               579,774,148
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Figures in Rand                                Note(s)                           2009          2008

Revenue                                                                                                                                              13                      100,515,569                  94,063,429
Other income                                                                                                                                                                         36,550                          13,647
Operating expenses                                                                                                                                                   (23,668,252)               (13,334,265)
Operating surplus                                                                                                                               15                       76,883,867                 80,742,811
Fair value adjustments of loans and receivables                                                                   22                         (7,240,021)                   3,135,458
Impairment loss reversal                                                                                                               27                          4,596,395                                      -
Impairment losses on loans                                                                                                         25                                          -                        (292,999)
Finance costs                                                                                                                                    23                               (16,537)                          (6,425)
Surplus for the year                                                                                                                                                        74,223,704                83,578,845

Statement of Financial Performance
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Figures in Rand                                                           Available for Sale Asset      Accumulated Surplus    Total Net Assets

Opening balance as previously reported                                                                                -                            147,852,733                147,852,733
Prior period error (refer to note 28)                                                                     (17,999,997)                              17,999,997                          -
Balance as restated at 01 April 2007                                             (17,999,997)                          165,852,730               147,852,733
Net surplus for the year                                                                                                                 -                              83,578,845                   83,578,845
Total changes                                                                                                                                   -                               83,578,845                   83,578,845
Balance at 01 April 2008                                                                                       (17,999,997)                           249,431,575               231,431,578
Total income and expenses for the year                                                                                  -                              74,223,704                   74,223,704
Fair value adjustment                                                                                                10,035,000                                                  -                   10,035,000
Total changes                                                                                                               10,035,000                               74,223,704                  84,258,704
Balance at 31 March 2009                                                                                       (7,964,997)                           323,655,279              315,690,282

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
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Cash Flow Statement

Figures in Rand                               Note(s)                            2009          2008

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations                                                                                               17                           8,106,509                  39,335,964
Finance costs                                                                                                                                    23                               (16,537)                          (6,425)
Increase in loans advanced                                                                                                                                     (19,674,014)                (13,160,339)
Decrease in current portion of loans                                                                                                                        2,202,450                        805,696
Net cash from operating activities                                                                                                                         (9,381,592)                26,974,896

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of equipment - expansion                                                                                           5                             (576,993)                     (815,155)
Proceeds of sale of equipment                                                                                                                                         84,653                          20,784
Purchase of intangible assets                                                                                                        3                            (119,521)                     (286,042)
Net cash from investing activities                                                                                                                              (611,861)                 (1,080,413)

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance lease payments                                                                                                                  8                               (39,336)                          93,622

Total cash movement for the year                                                                                                                        (10,032,789)                25,988,105
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year                                                                              521,834,502                495,846,397
Total cash at end of the year                                                                                                           7                     511,801,713              521,834,502
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1.  Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Ac-
counting Practice (GAAP) including any interpretations of such Statements issued by the Accounting Practices Board, with the 
effective Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board replacing the 
equivalent GAAP Statement as follows:

Currently the recognition and measurement principles in the above GRAP and GAAP Statements do not differ or result in
material differences in items presented and disclosed in the financial statements. The implementation of GRAP 1, 2 & 3 has
resulted in the following changes in the presentation of the financial statements:

2.  The cash flow statement can only be prepared in accordance with the direct method.

3.		Amount	and	nature	of	any	restriction	on	cash	balances	is	required.	Paragraphs	11	–	15	of	GRAP	1	have	not	been	implemented						
     due to the fact that the budget reporting standard has not been developed by the local standard setter and the international 
     standard is not effective for this financial year. Although the inclusion of budget information would enhance the usefulness of  
     the financial statements, non-disclosure will not affect the objective of the financial statements. The accounting policies 
     adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

GRAP standards issued but not yet effective:

GRAP 4 (IAS 21)      - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rate
GRAP 5 (IAS 23)      - Borrowing Costs
GRAP 6 (IAS 27)      - Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
GRAP 7 (IAS 28)      - Investments in Associates
GRAP 8 (IAS 31)      - Interests in Joint Ventures
GRAP 9 (IAS 18)      - Revenue for Exchange Transactions
GRAP 10 (IAS 29)    - Hyperinflationary Economies
GRAP 11 (IAS 11)    - Construction Contracts
GRAP 12 (IAS 2)       - Inventories
GRAP 13 (IAS 17)    - Leases
GRAP 14 (IAS 10)    - Events after the reporting date
GRAP 16 (IAS 40)    - Investment property
GRAP 17 (IAS 16)    - Property, Plant and Equipment
GRAP 19 (IAS 37)    - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
GRAP 23                    - Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
GRAP 100 (IFRS 5)  - Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
GRAP 101 (IAS 41)  - Agriculture
GRAP 102 (IAS 38)  - Intangible assets

Standard of GRAP
GRAP 1:  Presentation of financial statements 
GRAP 2:  Cash flow statements 
GRAP 3:  Accounting policies, changes in accounting

accounting estimates and errors

1.  Terminology differences:
Standard of GRAP 
Statement of financial performance 
Statement of financial position
Statement of changes in net assets 
Net assets 
Surplus/deficit
Accumulated surplus/deficit 
Trust Capital Share capital
Distributions to owners 

Replaced Statement of GAAP
IAS1 (AC101):  Presentation of financial statements
IAS7 (AC118):  Cash flow statements
IAS8 (AC103):  Accounting policies, changes in

accounting estimates and errors

Replaced Statement of GAAP
Income statement
Balance sheet
Statement of changes in equity
Equity
Profit/loss
Retained earnings
Share capital
Dividends

Accounting Policies



49GautengPartnershipFund 2009

Accounting Policies

1.1  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Judgements

In the process of applying the Trust’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgement, which has the most 
significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements:

Operating Lease commitments
The Trust has entered into an operating lease for the photocopier machine. The Trust has determined based on an evaluation of 
the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the machine and so 
accounts for the contract as a finance lease.

Estimates and assumptions

Fair value of Financial Instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets 
(publicly traded debt), they are determined using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flows model. The inputs to 
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required 
in establishing fair values. The judgement include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes 
in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. A significant (major) or prolonged  
(greater than one year) decline in fair value is determined by objective evidence.

1.2  Financial instruments

Initial recognition

Financial instruments are recognised when the Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Initial 
measurement is at fair value, which includes directly attributable transaction costs for investments not at fair value through surplus 
and deficit. The day one gain or loss is recognised in the statement of financial performance. These instruments are subsequently 
measured as set out below:

Fair value determination

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, 
they are determined using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flows model. The inputs to these models are taken 
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. 
The judgement include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these 
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. A significant or prolonged decline in fair value is determined by 
objective evidence. The discount rates used to present value these cash flows is adjusted for systematic and unsystematic risk.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any allowance 
for impairment.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an impairment allowance account, and the amount of the impairment 
loss is recognised in the statement of financial performance within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, 
it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are 
credited against income in the statement of financial performance. Gains or losses from the amortisation process are recognised 
in the surplus or deficit. Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables. Gains and losses are recognised in the 
statement of financial performance when the trade and other receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the 
amortisation process.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment 
allowance. Gains or losses from the amortisation process are recognised in the surplus or deficit. Trade and other payables are 
classified as other liabilities. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of financial performance when the trade and other 
payables are derecognised.
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Accounting Policies

1.2  Financial instruments (continues)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that 
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially 
measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment 
allowance. Cash and cash equivalents is classified as loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted on an active 
market. At subsequent reporting dates the Trust revises its estimates of receipts, and adjusts the carrying amount of the loan 
and receivable to reflect actual and revised estimated cash flows. The Trust recalculates the carrying amount by computing the 
present value of estimated future cash flows at the loan’s original effective interest rate. The adjustment is recognised as income or 
expense in surplus or deficit. Subsequently, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any 
impairment loss recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts. Loans and receivables are derecognised when the rights to receive 
cash flows from the investment have expired. Criteria used to determine the objective evidence would include financial analysis and 
non-compliance with loan agreement.

Derivatives

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract within the scope of IAS 39 with all three of the following characteristics:

(a)  Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign 
exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, of other variable, provided in the case of a non- financial 
variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract; 

(b)  it requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of 
    contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors; and

(c)  it is settled at a future date.

The put option is considered a derivative financial instrument due to the following:

(a)  the put option’s value changes in response to the financial instrument’s price being the change in the fair value of the
 equity investment year on year;

(b)  the put option required no initial net investment in terms of the shareholders agreement; and

(c)  the put option is going to be settled at a future date once the company has repaid the interest free loan to GPF and has paid     
       the dividend to compensate GFP for capital invested. Derivatives are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus 
       or deficit.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified in loans 
and receivables, held to maturity investments or financial assets at fair value through surplus and deficit. After initial measurement, 
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses recognised directly in equity until the 
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss recorded in equity is recognised in the income statement, 
or determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss recorded in equity is recognised in the statement of financial 
performance.

These investments are measured initially and subsequently at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are 
recognised directly in equity until the asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in net assets is included in the surpluses or deficit for the period.
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1.2  Financial instruments (continues)

The Trust assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets 
is impaired. In the case of equity assets classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the 
security below its cost is considered as one of the impairment indicators. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial 
assets,	the	cumulative	loss	–	measured	as	the	difference	between	the	acquisition	cost	and	the	current	fair	value,	less	any	impairment	
loss	on	that	financial	asset	previously	recognised	in	surplus	or	deficit	–	is	removed	from	equity	and	recognised	in	the	surplus	or	
deficit.

Impairment losses recognised in surplus or deficit for equity investments classified as available-for-sale are not subsequently 
reversed through surplus or deficit. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of the available-for-sale asset increases and the increase 
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, this fair value shall be recognised in the 
statement of net assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet if, and only if, there 
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise 
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and Receivables

The GPF classifies all it’s loans to third parties as loans and receivables. The Trust assesses its loans and receivables at each balance 
sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A loan or receivable 
is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred 
after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the loan. Evidence 
of impairment may include indications that the debtor or group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or 
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy and where observable data indicate 
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that 
correlate with defaults. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured 
as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original 
interest rate from a financial asset. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the investment’s 
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction 
that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would 
have been had the impairment not been recognised. In determining whether an impairment allowance should be recorded in the 
statement of financial position, the Trust makes judgment as to whether there is objective evidence that the asset might be impaired. 
The impairment allowance is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows discounted at the original effective rate from a financial asset. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the 
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of financial performance. Interest income 
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount based on the original effective interest rate of the asset. The present value 
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial assets’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest 
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

Available-for-sale financial assets

The GPF classifies all equity investments and related loans as available-for-sale-assets. For available-for-sale assets, the Trust assesses 
at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired. In the 
case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the 
fair value of the investment below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss-measured as the difference 
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the 
statement of financial performance - is removed from equity and recognised in the statement of financial performance. Impairment 
lossess on equity investments are not reversed through the statement of financial performance; increases in their fair value after 
impairment are recognised directly in equity.

Accounting Policies
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1.2  Financial instruments (continues)

Derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or when the Trust has transferred 
its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Trust assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset maybe impaired. If an indication exists, or 
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Trust estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset. Where the carrying 
amount of an asset exceeds it recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually or as appropriate; when circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

1.3  Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at 
cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. The useful lives of these intangible assets are 
assessed to be finite. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their useful life and this expense is taken to the 
statement of financial performance.

The most important amortisation rates are as follows:
Computer software 1-3 years

Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment on an annual basis. Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset is included 
in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition thereof is determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every period-end. Intangible assets with 
finite lives are amortised over their useful lives and are tested for impairment annually.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as 
intangible assets.

1.4 Equipment

The cost of an item of equipment is recognised as an asset when:
   - it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Trust; and
      the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Equipment is initially measured at cost. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amounts or recognised as a separate 
asset if the recognition criteria are met. Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of equipment and costs 
incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item 
of equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in 
surplus or deficit as incurred.

Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Equipment is depreciated over 
its expected useful live on a straight - line basis.

Accounting Policies
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The equipment residual value, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial 
year end. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to 
its recoverable amount (ie. Impairment losses are recognised).

Each component of an item of equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated 
separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit.

An item of equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 
Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of equipment (calculated as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in surplus or deficit in the year the asset is derecognised.

Leasehold improvements are capitalised at cost and are written off over the lease term.

1.5  Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date 
of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or the arrangement conveys a right to use 
the asset. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is 
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

Finance leases – lessee

Assets leased under a finance lease are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal 
to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the 
lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. 

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the prime rate at date of inception.

The lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is 
allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability. Finance charges are recognised in the surplus or deficit for the period. 

Operating leases – lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the 
amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease liability. This liability is not 
discounted.

1.6  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when:
 - the Trust has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
 - it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;
   and
 - a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

Item
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements

Average useful life
6 years
6 years
6 years
Between 1 and 6 years
1.5 years

1.4  Equipment (continues) 
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1.6  Provisions (continues)

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation. Where the 
time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. 
Provisions are discounted to net present value. Provision for leave is based on current salary rates and included in the statement of 
financial position. A provision is made for the estimated liability as a result of services rendered by employees up to reporting date. 
Provision for bonus is based on management’s best estimate of expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of 
the reporting period. No provision has been made for retirement benefits as the Trust does not provide for retirement benefits for its 
employees. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. The expense relating to a provision is presented in surplus or
deficit.

1.7  Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Trust and the revenue can be 
reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts 
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates, and value 
added tax.

Revenue comprises government grants, interest received from loans and receivables and available-for-sale assets and cash and cash 
equivalents.

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions 
will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the period necessary to match 
the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised 
as deferred income and released to statement of financial performance when an amount has been disbursed in terms of the GPF 
mandate, the amount of deferred income is reduced by the disbursement and is recognised in income on a systematic basis.

Interest income from loans and receivables and available-for-sale assets is recognised as interest accrues (using the effective interest 
rate that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instruments to the 
net carrying amount of the financial asset).

Interest received from cash and cash equivalents is accrued on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal amount 
outstanding and the effective interest rate over the period to maturity.

1.8  Capacity grants

Capacity grants represent amounts disbursed to Social Housing Institutions for operating expenditure. Grants are only paid upon 
the fulfillment of conditions for payment as specified in the relevant agreements. Once these conditions are satisfied the amount 
is expensed in the statement of financial performance. If subsequent to payment conditions are compromised, the grants are 
converted to loans and any amount previously expensed is reversed in the statement of financial performance.

1.9  Employee benefits

The cost of employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service. Employee 
entitlements are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability as a result of services 
rendered by employees up to reporting date. Provisions included in the statement of financial position are provisions for leave 
(based on the current salary rates) and bonus.

No provision has been made for retirement benefits as the Trust does not provide for retirement benefits for its employees.

1.10  Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with:
The Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA) 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care 
been exercised.

All irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged against the respective class of expense in the period in which it is 
incurred.
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1.11  Deferred income

Refer to the government grant and revenue accounting policy for the accounting of deferred income.

1.12  Government grants

Government grants are recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial position. When an amount has been disbursed 
in terms of the GPF mandate, the amount of deferred income is reduced by the disbursement and is recognised as income on a 
systematic basis.

Accounting Policies
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Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets consist of investments in unquoted ordinary shares. The valuation requires management to 
make estimates about the expected future cash flows of the shares which are discounted at current rates. Management believes
 that the resulting estimated fair values are reasonable and the most appropriate at the reporting date. Management has determined 
that the potential effect of using reasonably possible alternatives as inputs to the valuation model would reduce the fair value by  
R1 530 000 using less favourable assumptions by increasing the systematic risk by 5% and increase the fair value by R1 929 000 using 
more favourable assumptions by reducing the systematic risk by 5%.

The investment in Greater Germiston Inner City Housing Company Phase II (Pty) Ltd and Greater Germiston Inner City Housing 
Company Pharoe Park (Pty) Ltd consists of R4 000 000 each. The repayments of the investments have been determined by a put and 
call option between Gauteng Partnership Fund and the Ekhurleni Metropolitan Municipality as is stipulated in the loan agreement 
entered into by the former two parties. The put option has not been recognised in the annual financial statements as it has a fair 
value of nil.

The investment in Brickfields Housing Company (Pty) Ltd has been valued at R10 035 001 using the discounted cash flow technique. 
The cost of this investment is R10 000 000. This investment consists of 300 ordinary shares of R1 each and a loan of R9 999 700. This 
investment is unsecured, bears interest from time to time at a rate not exceeding 25%. The repayment thereof has been determined 
by a put and call option between Gauteng Partnership Fund and Johannesburg Housing Company (Pty) Ltd. The put option period 
commences on 1 July 2013 and terminates on 30 June 2015. The exercise of the put option is subject to the condition that all loan 
facility amounts and creditors are repaid in full. The Gauteng Partnership Trust has granted a call option to Johannesburg Housing 
Company (Pty) Ltd. The call option commences 1 July 2003 and terminates 30 June 2015, as is stipulated in the loan agreement 
entered into by the former two parties. The put option has a nil value and has not been recognised in the annual financial statements 
as no dividends have been paid to Gauteng Partnership Fund and loan facilities have not been fully repaid.  Interest of R778 087 was 
received during the 2009 year on the loan.

Credit quality of debt in available-for-sale financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets is managed internally by ensuring that investments are made only after assessing and evaluating 
the social housing institutions management capacity and project feasibility. Management considers the credit risk relating to the 
loan in Brickfield Housing Company (Pty) Ltd as being minimal as the companies cashflows have improved and they are able to 
make repayments on the loan.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand                                                                                                                                                                    2009                      2008

  
2. Available-for-sale investments

Unlisted shares at fair value
Greater Germiston Inner City Housing Company Phase II (Proprietary) Limited-                                         4,000,000                    4,000,000
nominal amount

Impairment                                                                                                                                                                        (3,999,999)                  (3,999,999)

Fair value                                                                                                                                                                                                1                                    1

Greater Germiston Inner City Housing Company Pharoe Park (Proprietary)                                                  4,000,000                    4,000,000
Limited - nominal amount

Impairment                                                                                                                                                                        (3,999,999)                  (3,999,999)

Fair value                                                                                                                                                                                                1                                    1

Brickfields Housing Company (Proprietary) Limited - nominal amount                                                        10,000,000                 10,000,000

Impairment                                                                                                                                                                        (9,999,999)                  (9,999,999)

Fair value  adjustment                                                                                                                                                    10,035,000                                    -

Fair Value                                                                                                                                                                                10,035,001                                    1

                                                                                                                                                                                               10,035,003                                    3
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3. Intangible assets

Figures in Rand                                                                          2009                 2008
                                                                                   Cost        Accumulated            Carrying                        Cost         Accumulated           Carrying 
                                                                                                        amortisation                   value                                           amortisation                  value  
Computer software                                      440,776                 (258,975)              181,801                321,254                     (90,426)           230,828

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2009                  
                  Opening          Additions       Amortisation                  Closing                                                                                                                              
                                                                                                                  Balance                                                                                     Balance
Computer software                                                                        230,828               119,521               (168,548)                   181,801

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2008                      
                  Opening         Additions        Amortisation                     Closing 
                    Balance                                                                                        Balance
Computer software                                                                           16,802              286,042                  (72,016)                  230,828

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprises of Share Point Portal. The carrying amount of this system is R100,050 and the remaining amortisation 
period is 34 months.

4. Loans and receivables

The Gauteng Partnership Fund enters into loan agreements directly with financial or social housing institutions. These financial or 
social housing institutions then advance these monies to borrowers. The amounts owed under the ABSA, Standard Bank, Trust for 
Urban Housing Finance Bridging facility and Trust for Urban Housing Finance - Intuthuko (Pty) Ltd are the amounts owed to Gauteng 
Partnership Fund by borrowers.

ABSA
Loan amount                                                                                                                                                                                    5,043,285         2,780,544
Advance and interest capitalised                                                                                                                                            24,849,751          2,835,650
Fair value adjustment                                                                                                                                                                 (6,518,960)           (155,763)
Repayments                                                                                                                                                                                      (521,594)                           -
Interest amortised                                                                                                                                                                             372,808             241,602
Current portion transferred to current assets                                                                                                                     (1,128,084)           (658,748) 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                  22,097,206         5,043,285

The ABSA subsidised loan facility supports developments of new sub-markets within the social housing sector which allows for 
blending of interest rates between banks and the Gauteng Partnership Trust resulting in reduced rates to projects. The nominal 
amount of the loan was R29,805,582(2008:R6,081,771) and bears interest at prime minus 4.25% and prime less 3.75%. The repayment 
terms are 10 years from date of disbursement.

Brickfields Housing Company (Pty) Ltd
Loan Amount                                                                                                                                                                                                    1         4,596,396
Impairment loss reversal                                                                                                                                                              4,596,395                           -
Interest amortised                                                                                                                                                                          1,182,297                           -
Impairment                                                                                                                                                                                                        -        (4,596,395)
                                                                                                                                                                                                             5,778,693                           1

The nominal amount of the loan to Brickfields Housing Company (Pty) Ltd of R14,300,000 consists of redeemable preference shares 
with a fixed redemption date in 2017 and is interest free. Impairment on this loan was reversed in the current financial year due to 
good financial performance.
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Jozi Housing (Pty) Ltd
Loan amount                                                                                                                                                                       2,004,898                      2,267,636
Fair value adjustment                                                                                                                                                            (33,916)                        108,233
Repayment received                                                                                                                                                                (5,673)                            (3,873)
Interest amortised                                                                                                                                                                  (15,501)                           38,111
Current portion transferred to current assets                                                                                                             (405,209)                       (405,209)
                                                                                                                                                                                                1,544,599                    2,004,898

The loan of R2,836,466 to Jozi Housing Company (Pty) Ltd bears interest at prime less 4.25% per annum and is repayable in eight 
annual installments of R405,209. The first repayment was received in May 2007. The nominal value of the loan is R2,013,555 
(2008:R2,446,388). The loan is secured by a mortgage bond over Erf 5198 Johannesburg Township.

  
Trust for Urban Housing Finance - Intuthuko (Pty) Ltd
Loan amount                                                                                                                                                                       1,320,323                       1,189,481
Interest  amortised                                                                                                                                                                145,236                         130,842  
                                                                                                                                                                                                1,465,559                     1,320,323

  
Housing Company Tshwane
Loan amount                                                                                                                                                                           293,000                         293,000
Impairment allowance                                                                                                                                                        (292,999)                    (292,999)  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                  1                                        1 

The nominal amount of the interest free loan to Greater Germiston Inner City Housing Corporation Phase II (Proprietary) Limited 
is R3,500,000 and is repayable in five equal installments of R700, 000 each (no interest is payable on the capital amount), the first 
payment is due in January 2010. No interest income was earned on this loan. This amount was impaired in the previous financial 
year due to poor financial performance.

Greater Germiston Inner City Housing Company Pharoe Park (Pty) Ltd
Loan amount                                                                                                                                                                        1,847,320                      1,847,320
Impairment                                                                                                                                                                         (1,847,319)                  (1,847,319)
                                                                                                                                                                                                                  1                                        1

The nominal amount of the interest free loan to Greater Germiston Inner City Housing Corporation Pharoe Park (Proprietary) Limited 
is worth R3,500,000 an is repayable in five equal installments of R700, 000 each (no interest is payable on the capital amount), the 
first payment is due in January 2010. No interest income was earned on this loan. This amount was impaired in the previous financial 
year due to poor financial performance.

Greater Germiston Inner City Housing Company Phase II (Pty) Ltd
Loan amount                                                                                                                                                                       1,847,320                    1,847,320
Impairment                                                                                                                                                                        (1,847,319)                  (1,847,319)
                                                                                                                                                                                                                  1                                      1

The interest free loan of R293,000 to Housing Company Tshwane was for capacity building and would have been converted into a 
grant if satisfactory progress reports had been received. As at year end the company had not fulfilled their obligations therefore an 
impairment allowance has been provided for. No interest income was earned on this loan. The repayment terms are immediate if 
grant obligations are not fulfilled.

The interest free loan of R2,000,000 was made available from our Emerging Entrepreneur Fund to enable the Trust for Urban 
Housing Finance to finance low collateral projects. The designated funds will not solely be managed and utilised with the object 
to make profits, but to facilitate and fund low collateral projects on the basis that the capital amount is preserved. The loan is 
repayable in one installment in April 2012.

4.  Loans and receivables (continues)
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Standard Bank
Loan amount                                                                                                                                                                     10,831,063                  13,671,310
Advance and interest capitalised                                                                                                                                     173,950                     2,540,025
Fair value adjustments                                                                                                                                                       (147,227)                       885,696
Repayment received                                                                                                                                                       (3,211,784)                  (2,830,353)
Interest amortised                                                                                                                                                                   72,939                        617,009
Current portion transferred to current assets                                                                                                         (1,147,504)                  (4,052,624)
                                                                                                                                                                                                         6,571,437                 10,831,063

The Standard Bank Subsidised loan facility supports developments of new sub-markets within the social housing sector which 
allows for blending of interest rates between banks and the Gauteng Partnership Trust resulting in reduced rates to projects. The 
nominal loan amount is R8,255,564 (2008: R14,846,859) and bears interest at prime less 3.75% per annum. The repayment of this 
amount is 10 years from date of disbursement.

Trust for Urban Housing Finance Bridging Facility
Loan amount                                                                                                                                                                     23,217,250                 12,200,412
Fair value adjustment                                                                                                                                                                         -                  (2,286,150)
Advance and interest capitalised                                                                                                                                  1,598,710                  12,548,010
Interest amortised                                                                                                                                                                 817,695                        754,978
                                                                                                                                                                                                      25,633,655                   23,217,250

The nominal amount of the Bridging Facility for Trust for Urban Housing Finance is R29,776,100 (2008:R28,177,388) is aimed at 
addressing the requirements of the inner-cities business environment and of property market that require quick responses 
to property financing. Interest is capitalised for the first two years at prime less 4%. The loan is repayable in one installment in 
September 2013.

Maseleng Investments (Pty) Ltd
Loan amount                                                                                                                                                                       2,478,625                    3,100,000
Fair value adjustment                                                                                                                                                         (139,232)                     (457,758)
Advance and interest capitalised                                                                                                                                     527,279                          30,499
Interest amortised                                                                                                                                                                   35,563                             5,884
Current portion transferred to current assets                                                                                                            (433,334)                      (200,000)
                                                                                                                                                                                                         2,468,901                   2,478,625

The loan of R3,100,000 to Maseleng Investments (Pty) Ltd bears interest at a rate of prime less 4.25% per annum and is repayable in 
seven annual installments commencing February 2010. The nominal amount is R3,457,779 (2008: R3,103,482). The loan is secured 
by a mortgage bond over Erf 4851 Johannesburg Township.

Total loans and receivables                                                                                                                                        67,213,087                 44,895,448

KTN Properties (Pty) Ltd
Loan amount                                                                                                                                                                       1,944,000                                     -
Fair value adjustment                                                                                                                                                         (460,300)                                    -
Interest capitalised                                                                                                                                                                160,211                                     -
Interest amortised                                                                                                                                                                      9,123                                     - 
                                                                                                                                                                                                         1,653,034                                       -

The loan of R1,944,000 to KTN Property Management (Pty) Ltd bears interest at a rate of prime less 3.75% per annum and is 
repayable in nine equal installments of R237,430 commencing in July 2010. The loan is secured by a mortgage bond over Erf 4604 
Johannesburg Township. The nominal amount is R2,104,211.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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4.  Loans and receivables (continues)

Figures in Rand                                                                                                                                                                    2009                      2008

 Non - current portion                                                                                                                                                       67,213,087                44,895,448

Current portion                                                                                                                                                                       3,114,131                   5,316,581

Impairment allowance
Opening Balance                                                                                                                                                                                 -                                       -
Current year - Housing Company Tshwane                                                                                                                                -                        (292,999)
Closing Balance                                                                                                                                                                                   -                        (292,999) 

                                                                      Opening             Additions               Disposals        Depreciation      Carrying value
                                                                      Balance
Furniture and fixtures                                345,873                    20,691                            -                     (92,910)                273,654      
Motor vehicles                                                          -                      53,225                             -                       (6,052)                  47,173
Office equipment                                       159,896                   280,222                              -                  (101,227)                338,891
Computer equipment                               288,320                   241,048                   (7,137)                 (126,946)                395,285
Leasehold improvements                                      -                   219,969                          -                     (33,816)                 186,153
                                                                     794,089                  815,155                ( 7 , 1 3 7 )                 (360,951)           1,241,156
  
Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount)

Office equipment                                                                                                                                                                     67,183                        110,460

6. Trade and other receivables

Jozi Housing Company (Pty) Ltd                                                                                                                                         17,500                          21,950
Sundry debtors                                                                                                                                                                      178,159                          58,436
Capital accrued                                                                                                                                                                      185,329                        536,046
Interest accrued                                                                                                                                                                  5,095,624                    5,639,198
                                                                                                                                                                                                         5,476,612                   6,255,630

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

                                                                                                               2009                                                                                        2008
                                                                                   Cost        Accumulated          Carrying                      Cost           Accumulated             Carrying 
                                                                                                        depreciation                 value                                            depreciation                   value  
Furniture and fixtures                                610,687                (411,260)               199,427                 586,940              (313,286)                273,654
Motor vehicles                                             161,076                  (16,622)               144,454                    53,225                   (6,052)                   47,173                                                                                                           
Office equipment                                       539,189                (290,355)               248,834                  608,649              (269,758)                 338,891
Computer equipment                               983,473                (411,793)               571,680                  700,931              (305,646)                395,285
Leasehold improvements                        219,969                (156,020)                 63,949                   219,969                (33,816)                   86,153
Total                                                             2,514,394           (1,286,050)          1,228,344              2,169,714             (928,558)           1,241,156

Reconciliation of equipment - 2009

5.  Equipment

                                                                      Opening             Additions               Disposals        Depreciation      Carrying value
                                                                      Balance
Furniture and fixtures                                273,654                    23,748                            -                    (97,975)                 199,427        
Motor vehicles                                               47,173                  161,076                (43,795)                  (20,000)                144,454
Office equipment                                       338,891                     41,199                          (2 )                 (131,254)               248,834
Computer equipment                              395,285                   350,970                  (4,306)                (170,269)                571,680
Leasehold improvements                        186,153                               -                              -                 (122,204)                  63,949
                                                     1,241,156                  576,993               (48,103)               (541,702)           1,228,344

Reconciliation of equipment - 2008



61GautengPartnershipFund 2009

Credit quality of trade and other receivables

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external 
credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates.

Fair value of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are carried at invoice amount and not discounted due to the effect of discounting not being material.
Trade and other receivables fair value approximates its carrying value.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non interest bearing and are generally on 30 days terms. Capital accrued represent amounts 
receivable within one month from Standard Bank. Interest accrued represents the amounts receivable within 1 month from ABSA 
and Standard Bank on current accounts.

Sundry Debtors

Sundry debtors consists of prepayments and deposits held.

7.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Petty cash                                                                                                                                                                                     2,596                               2,413
Capital account                                                                                                                                                              471,572,417                 488,670,126
Current account                                                                                                                                                               12,390,852                      5,326,115
Call account                                                                                                                                                                      27,835,848                     27,835,848
                                                                                                                                                                                                   511,801,713                521,834,502

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents  approximates 
their carrying value as cash and cash equivalents are readily convertible to cash.

8.   Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due
  - within one year                                                                                                                                                                   52,870                             52,870
  - in second to fifth year inclusive                                                                                                                                     35,247                             88,117
                                                                                                                                                                                                      88,117                           140,987
Less: future finance charges                                                                                                                                                 (9,603)                         (23,137)
Present value of minimum lease payments                                                                                                                   78,514                         117,850

Present value of minimum lease payments due
  - within one year                                                                                                                                                                    44,987                            39,336
  - in second to fifth year inclusive                                                                                                                                      33,527                            78,514
                                                                                                                                                                                                      78,514                         117,850

Non-current liabilities                                                                                                                                                             33,527                           78,514
Current liabilities                                                                                                                                                                      44,987                            39,336 
                                                                                                                                                                                                      78,514                         117,850

This lease is linked to the prime lending rate with no escalation and for a period of three years.

The entity’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s title over the leased assets. Refer to note 5

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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Reconciliation of provisions - 2009

                                                                      Opening             Additions               Utilised           Underprovision               Total
                                                                      Balance                                                during the                 for the
                                                                                                                                                 year                          year
Provision for leave pay                           125,645                  154,356               (125,645)                             -                        154,356
Provision for bonuses                             638,944                   857,501              (684,364)                  45,420                       857,501         
                                                                          764,589              1,011,857             (810,009)                 45,420                  1,011,857

Provision for leave is based on current salary rates and included in the statement of financial position. A provision is made
for the estimated liability as a result of services rendered by employees up to reporting date. Provision for bonus is based
on management’s best estimate of expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
The expected settlement of this provision is 30 September 2009.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

9.  Deferred income

Non-current liabilities                                                                                                                                                62,643,955                193,407,033
Current liabilities                                                                                                                                                       218,850,353                120,023,666
                                                                                                                                                                                      281,494,308               313,430,699

Deferred income represents the amount of government grants not yet disbursed.

Reconciliation of deferred income
Balance at beginning of year                                                                                                                               313,430,699                  342,795,739
Less: Deferred income taken as revenue                                                                                                           (31,936,391)                 (43,154,390)
Add: Additional grant                                                                                                                                                                   -                    13,789,350
                                                                                                                                                                                    281,494,308                 313,430,69

10.  Operating lease liability

Non-current operating lease liability                                                                                                                                         -                               13,182
Current liabilities                                                                                                                                                                     13,182                             32,328

                                                                                                                                                                                                      13,182                              45,510

Operating lease rentals represents rentals payable by the Trust to the Gauteng Department of Housing for office premises.

The lease is for five years and escalates by 10% annually. The lease expires in June 2009 with an option to renew.

11.  Trade and other payables

Trade payables                                                                                                                                                                    589,520                               644,075
Amounts received in advance                                                                                                                                                    -                          2,229,197
Deposits held on behalf of the Department for Subsidies Programme                                                         173,028                        31,110,650
                                                                                                                                                                                              762,548                        33,983,922

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 day terms.

The deposits held on behalf of the Department of Housing Subsidies Programme are held in terms of a memorandum of
agreement with the Gauteng Department of Housing to assist the department in expediting payments to subsidised
projects.

For terms and conditions relating to related parties, refer to Note 20.

12. Provisions

Figures in Rand                                                                                                                                                                    2009                      2008
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15.  Operating surplus

Operating surplus for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

Auditors remuneration
Audit fee                                                                                                                                                                                   624,039                         424,806
Internal audit fees                                                                                                                                                                 606,480                          329,361
                                                                                                                                                                                                         1,230,519                         754,167

 Operating lease charges
Premises
    Operating lease rentals                                                                                                                                                    286,380                         278,649
Motor vehicles
    Operating lease rentals                                                                                                                                                                  -                              9,946
                                                                                                                                                                                                   286,380                          288,595                                                                            

Gain on sale of equipment                                                                                                                                                    36,550                           13,647
Impairment loss reversal on loans                                                                                                                               (4,596,395)                                     -
Impairment loss on loans                                                                                                                                                                  -                         292,999
Amortisation on intangible assets                                                                                                                                   168,549                            72,016
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment                                                                                                        541,703                         360,951
Employee costs                                                                                                                                                                   7,038,045                      5,639,991
Chief Financial Officer - Basic Salary                                                                                                                               881,653                          753,840
Chief Financial Officer - Performance Bonus                                                                                                                138,142                            27,720
Chief Investment Officer - Basic Salary                                                                                                                           765,092                         719,464
Chief Investment Officer - Performance Bonus                                                                                                           108,633                            73,500

16. Taxation

No provision has been made for 2009 tax as the company has been granted tax exemption status by the South African Revenue 
Service in terms of section 30 of the Income Tax Act, and the receipts and accruals are exempt from income tax in terms of Section 
10 (1) (cN) of the Income Tax Act.

13.  Revenue

Actual Interest received from loans and receivables                                                                                              4,289,715                      1,956,774
Interest calculated - Effective interest rate method                                                                                                5,679,462                      5,263,291
Interest received from banks (refer to note 14)                                                                                                      58,610,001                   43,688,974
Government grants                                                                                                                                                         31,936,391                   43,154,390
Total finance revenue (on a historical cost basis)                                                                                           100,515,569                   94,063,429

Figures in Rand                                                                                                                                                                    2009                      2008

14.  Interest received from banks comprises of:

Interest received
Current accounts                                                                                                                                                                7,329,645                      5,371,541
Capital account                                                                                                                                                                 47,841,801                   35,674,816
Call accounts                                                                                                                                                                        3,438,555                      2,642,617
                                                                                                                                                                                                       58,610,001                  43,688,974

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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Figures in Rand                                                                                                                                                                    2009                      2008

17.  Reconciliation between net surplus and cash (used in) /generated from operations

Surplus for the year                                                                                                                                                         74,223,704                 83,578,845
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation                                                                                                                                        710,250                       432,967
Impairment loss                                                                                                                                                                                   -                       292,999
Profit on sale of equipment                                                                                                                                               (36,550)                        (13,647)
Finance costs                                                                                                                                                                            16,537                            6,425
Fair value adjustments                                                                                                                                                   (7,240,021)                  3,135,458
(Decrease)/Increase in operating lease assets and accruals                                                                                    (32,328)                       (11,331)
Movements in provisions                                                                                                                                                   247,268                          61,127
Impairment loss reversal                                                                                                                                                 4,596,395                                     -
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables                                                                                                                                              779,018                   (2,519,492)
Trade and other payables                                                                                                                                           (33,221,374)                (16,262,348)
Deferred income                                                                                                                                                           (31,936,390)                (29,365,039)
                                                                                                                                                                                               8,106,509                  39,335,964

18.  Commitments

Commitments are in terms of our mandate, to facilitate funding, provide capacity funding and to provide debt/equity to
specific projects. Commitments for projects usually run longer than a year.

Facilitation funding commitments
Wholesale Facility Trust for Urban Housing Finance                                                                                            30,000,000                 30,000,000
ABSA Development Facility                                                                                                                                                             -                 20,000,000
Standard Bank Development facility                                                                                                                        30,000,000                                     -
Emerging Entrepreneur Fund                                                                                                                                                         -                    8,000,000
Pre-development facility                                                                                                                                                                  -                        125,000
Sustainable Housing Equity Fund                                                                                                                              50,000,000                                     -
                                                                                                                                                                                           110,000,000                 58,125,000

The Wholesale Facility Trust for Urban Housing Finance allows for pooling or syndication of investments on a shared participation or 
other basis within a potential securitization structure.

The Standard Bank Development Funding Facility facilitates the sustainable entry of banks through sharing financing risk for 
housing developments. It allows for an interest rate blending resulting in cheaper housing project finance.

The Pre-development facility provides risk capital for projects from inception thereby facilitating housing projects.

The Sustainable Housing Equity Fund provides for risk sharing with financial institutions in equity funding for sustainable
integrated developments.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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Project funding commitments
Greater Germiston Housing Inner City Housing Company (Pty) Ltd                                                                6,000,000                       6,000,000
Ikhaya Labantu Housing Association                                                                                                                                          -                        8,451,099
Johannesburg Housing Company (Pty) Ltd - Hlanganani                                                                                  20,000,000                                       -
Johannesburg Social Housing Company (Pty) Ltd - City Deep                                                                         23,948,109                   23,948,109
Johannesburg Social Housing Company (Pty) Ltd - Roodepoort                                                                    19,663,319                    19,663,319
Madulamoho Housing association - Allenby building                                                                                          3,270,000                                        -
Madulamoho Housing Association                                                                                                                                 294,916                          688,137
KTN Property Management (Pty) Ltd - Parklane Hotel                                                                                              655,101                      2,599,101
KTN Property Management (Pty) Ltd - Glazina Court                                                                                                500,000                         500,000
Johannesburg Social Housing Company (Pty) Ltd - Pennyville                                                                          8,063,710                                        -
Johannesburg Social Housing Company (Pty) - Orlando Ekhaya                                                                    12,888,948                                        -
Yeast City Housing                                                                                                                                                                866,250                                        -
Yeast City Housing - TAU Village                                                                                                                                   9,000,000                                        -
Lionshare New Properties 1 CC - Lubraco House                                                                                                    3,700,000                                        -
                                                                                                                                                                                          108,850,353                  61,849,765

The Board approved an investment in Greater Germiston Inner City Housing Company for R6 000 000. The disbursement
of this amount is pending the acquisition of an additional property named President Place.

The obligation to Ihkaya Labantu Housing Association was cancelled due to withdrawal of subsidies.

The obligation to Johannesburg Housing Company (Pty) Ltd - Hlanganani was approved by the Board.

The obligations to Johannesburg Social Housing Company (Pty) Ltd - Roodepoort and Johannesburg Social Housing
Company (Pty) Ltd - Glazina Court was approved by the Board.

The obligation to Madulamoho Housing Association - Allenby building and Madulamoho Housing Association was approved
by the Board.

The Board approved funding to KTN Property Management (Pty) Ltd for Parklane Hotel and Glazina Court .

The obligation to Johannesburg Social Housing Company (Pty) Ltd - Pennyville was approved by the Board.

The obligation to Johannesburg Social Housing Company (Pty) Ltd - Orlando Ekhaya was approved by the Board.

The obligation to Yeast City Housing - TAU Village and Yeast City Housing was approved by the Board.

The obligation to Lionshare New Properties 1 CC - Lubraco House was approved by the Board.

Operating leases commitments

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

Gauteng Department of Housing
Not later than 1 year                                                                                                                                                                81,831                        230,973
2 to 5 years                                                                                                                                                                                            -                             81,831
                                                                                                                                                                                                       81,831                        312,804

 

18.  Commitments (continues)
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Gauteng Department of Housing - Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the entity for office premises.
The lease term was for 5 years with an annual escalation of 10%.

19.  Trustees remuneration

Executive
K Kutoane - Basic Salary                                                                                                                                                   1,075,200                       880,000
K Kutoane - Performance Bonus                                                                                                                                        199,474                                    -
Non-executive
M Mogase - Trustees fees                                                                                                                                                         9,936                            7,923
M Phaweni - Trustees fees                                                                                                                                                     24,840                            9,244
EP Stroebel - Trustees fees                                                                                                                                                    15,524                             7,570
K Mdlulwa - Trustees fees                                                                                                                                                      16,588                            7,570
P Mphahlele - Trustees fees                                                                                                                                                    1,508                                     -
                                                                                                                                                                                               1,343,070                        912,307

DC Chainee is representative of the municipality and therefore does not receive any trustees remuneration.

M Mnyani is representative of the founder and therefore does not receive any trustees remuneration.

20. Related party disclosure

Related party transactions include:

The Founder

The Trust has entered into a lease rental agreement with the Gauteng Department of Housing, the founder of the
organisation.

Annual lease rental                                                                                                                                                               318,701                       289,980

The Trust holds unsecured deposits on behalf of the Gauteng Department of Housing in terms of memoranda of agreements to 
assist the department in expediting payments to contractors, subsidised projects and consultants.

Kliptown Project                                                                                                                                                                6,025,336                  31,110,650
Subsidies Program                                                                                                                                                          63,538,382                                     -
                                                                                                                                                                                            69,563,718                  31,110,650

The Trust was founded by the Gauteng Department of Housing as an independent entity in the form of a non-profit Trust. The Trust 
was established and registered in terms of the Trust Property Control Act. A service level agreement has been entered into between 
the Trust and the Founder.

Key Management

Management considers the Trustees and senior management to be key management. Senior management salaries have been 
disclosed in note 15 and Trustees remuneration have been disclosed per note 19. Trustees do not receive pension entitlement from 
the Trust.

Xhasa Accounting and Technical Centre

The Trust shares office space with Xhasa Accounting and Technical Centre (A public entity of Gauteng Department of Housing) 
on which certain expenses are shared. During the year the following operational transactions occurred with Xhasa Accounting 
and Technical Centre.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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Net payments received                                                                                                                                                         67,962                        137,716
Balance as at year end (Due from)                                                                                                                                     33,685                                724
 
21.  Financial Risk management and objectives

The Trust’s principal financial instruments comprise available-for-sale investments, loans and receivables, cash and cash equivalents 
and trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, and, finance lease and obligations. The main purpose of the available-
for-sale investments, loans and receivables and cash and cash equivalents is to assist Social Housing Institutions to leverage funding 
from private financial institutions, in line with one of the objectives of the Trust. The trade and other receivables, trade and other 
payables, and, finance lease and obligations arise directly from the Trust’s operations.

The risks arising from the Trust’s financial instruments are credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Trustees reviews 
and agrees policies for managing these risks.

The objectives of managing financial instrument risk is to safeguard the Trust assets whilst still enabling fulfillment of the Trust 
mandate. The Trust’s method of measuring the risks mentioned below involves detailed project feasibility, regular project monitoring 
and management.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument. The objective of credit risk is to 
ensure that the counterparty will meet its obligations under a financial instrument. The Trust is exposed to the credit risk in respect 
of its financial assets comprising available-for-sale assets and loans and receivables. Credit risk is managed internally by ensuring 
that investments are made only after assessing and evaluating the social housing institutions management capacity and project 
feasibility. The method for measuring credit risk is the ongoing monitoring of financial assets. The Gauteng Partnership Fund’s credit 
risk exposure arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure of R587,605,543 equal to the carrying amount of 
loans and receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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Credit exposure
Class of financial instrument                   Credit risk exposure                 Collateral                  Repayment   terms                  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

Credit quality
of financial
assets that are
neither past
due nor
impaired

Loans and receivables
Housing Company Tshwane
Standard Bank

ABSA

Brickfields Housing Company (Pty) 
Ltd

Greater Germiston Inner City
Housing Phase II (Pty) Ltd 

Greater Germiston Inner City
Greater Pharoe Park (Pty) Ltd  

Trust for Urban Housing Finance - 
Intuthuko
(Pty) Ltd

Jozi Housing (Pty) Ltd

Maseleng Investments (Pty) Ltd

1
7,718,941

23,225,290

5,778,693 

 1

1

1,465,558 

1,949,809

 2,902,235

N/A
Suretyship held
by Standard
Bank for total
loan granted to
Borrower

Suretyship held
by ABSA for total
loan granted to
Borrower
 

Redeemable
preference 
shares 
Loan to company

Loan to company

Mortgage bond
held by
Inthuthuko for the
total loan granted
to the Borrower   
Mortgage bond
held by Gauteng
Partnership Fund
for the total loan
granted to
Borrower
Mortgage bond
held by Gauteng
Partnership Fund
for the total loan
granted to
Borrower  

N/A 
Seven years
from date of
disbursement
of loan with
final repayment
date 15/2/2015 
Seven years
from date of
disbursement
of loan with
final repayment
date 31/1/2015 
Redemption
date 1/4/2016

Twelve years
from date of
disbursement
of loan with a
final repayment
date
31/01/2014
Twelve years
from date of
disbursement
of loan with a
final repayment
date
31/01/2014
One repayment
in June 2015

Seven years
with final
repayment
date 30/4/2013

Seven years
with final
repayment
date 28/2/2015
  

Impaired
Performing

Performing 

Performing

Impaired

Impaired

Performing

Performing

Performing

21.  Financial Risk management and objectives (continues)
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Credit exposure
Class of financial instrument                  Credit risk exposure                 Collateral                  Repayment   terms                  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

Liquidity Risk

The Trust manages liquidity risk through proper management of working capital, capital expenditure and actual vs forecasted cash 
flows and its cash management policy. Liquidity risk is the risk arising from default of the counterparty. The objectives of managing 
liquidity risk is to safeguard the Trust assets whilst still enabling fulfillment of the Trust mandate. The Trust manages liquidity risk 
through regular monitoring of financial assets. The forecasted cash flows considers the maturity of its financial assets and project 
cash flows from operations. Adequate reserves and liquid resources are also maintained. The following table sets forth details of the 
remaining contractual maturities of financial assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2009. Liquidity Risk is currently 0.003%. Liquidity 
risk is calculated by dividing the financial assets by financial liabilities and non-financial liabilities as per the table shown below:

Credit quality
of financial
assets that are
neither past
due nor
impaired

KTN Properties (Pty) Ltd       
 

Trust for Urban Housing Bridging 
Facility

 Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

1,653,034

25,633,655

 5,476,612
 511,801,713

 587,605,543

Mortgage bond
and suretyship
held by Gauteng
Partnership Fund
for the total loan
granted to the
Borrower 
No collateral held
due to short
duration of the
facility to
Borrower i.e. 3
months
-
- 

Seven years
with final
repayment
date 31/7/2015     
 
 
 
Seven years
with final
repayment
date 30/9/2013

-
-

Performing  
 
 
 
   
 
 
Performing

-
-

21.  Financial Risk management and objectives (continues)
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Financial Assets 2008
 
 

Available-for-sale 
investments
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash 
equivalents 
Trade and other
receivables

Trade and other payables
Finance lease
Non-financial
instruments
Provisions 
Operating lease

Financial and non-financial liabilities

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Finance lease
Non-financial
instruments
Provisions 
Operating lease

Due or due
not later
than one
month 
 
 

-
  

108,800
 511,801,713

5,089,557 

517,000,070 

Due or due
not later
than one
month 
 
 

      -

477,438 
521,834,502

6,255,630

528,567,570
  

 (736,112)
(3,523)

-

(154,356) 
(27,277)

(921,268) 
516,078,802

(33,983,923)
(3,081)

-

(125,645)
(25,629)

(34,138,278) 
494,429,292

Due later
than one
year but not
later than
five years

-
 

29,041,859
- 
 
-

 29,041,859

Due later
than one
year but not
later than
five years

-

26,980,129
- 
 
- 

26,980,129

 
- 

(33,527)
- 

-
- 

(33,527) 
29,008,332

 
- 

(78,514)
-

-
(112,768)

(191,282) 
26,788,847

Due later
than one
month but
not later
than three
months

 -

 733,975
- 
 

387,055 

1,121,030

Due later
than one
month but
not later
than three
months

 -

1,189,170
- 
 
-

1,189,170

 
(26,436) 

(7,164)
-

-
(54,554)

 (88.154)
 1,032,876

 
-

(6,264)
-

-
(51,258)

 (57,522)
1,131,648

Due after
five years 
 

        
     18,000,000

 
67,878,071

- 
  
 -

 85,878,071

Due after
five years 
 

        
     18,000,000

62,277,175
- 

  
- 

80,277,175

-
-
-

-
-
-

85,878,071

-
-
-

-
-
-

80,277,175

Due later
than three
months but
not later
than one
year 

-

2,275,541 
-

 - 
 

2,275,541

Due later
than three
months but
not later
than one
year 

  -

3,977,221
-

 - 
 

3,977,221

-
(34,300)

-

 (917,114)  
- 

(951,414)
1,324,127

-
(29,991)

-

(678,491)
(251,163) 

(959,645)
3,017,576

Total

 18,000,000
 

100,038,246
511,801,713

 
5,476,612

635,316,571

Total

 18,000,000

94,901,133 
521,834,502 

6,255,630
  

 640,991,265

 (762,548)
(78,514)

- 

(1,071,470)
(81,831)

(1,994,363) 
633,322,208

(33,983,923)
(117,850)

-

 (804,136)
(440,818) 

(35,346,727) 
605,644,538

Financial Assets 2009
 
 

Available-for-sale 
investments
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash 
equivalents 
Trade and other
receivables

21.  Financial Risk management and objectives (continues)
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Interest rate risk

The Trust’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Trust’s loans and receivables with floating 
interest rates. The objectives of managing interest rate risk is to safeguard the Trust assets whilst still enabling fulfillment of the Trust 
mandate. The objective of interest rate risk management is to consider the effect of fluctuations in interest rates that might affect 
the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument. The method for measuring interest rate risk is the sensitivity analysis for 
fluctuations in the interest rate. Interest rate risk is managed internally by ensuring that an allowance for increased interest rates are 
provided for in the project assessment. The Trust’s exposure to interest rate risk arises from increases in the interest rate that could 
give rise to default of the counterparty.

Interest rate risk table

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held 
constant of the Trust’s surplus (through the impact of floating rate loans). The effect on the surplus has been determined by 
calculating an increase or decrease of 150 basis points on the current interest rates of loans and receivables. Management considers 
a range of 150 basis points increase or decrease to be reasonable for the analysis. There is no impact on the Trust’s equity.

Year                                                                                                                                                                                            Increase/                              Effect on
                                                                                                                                                                                                     decrease in basis                surplus
                                                                                                                                                                                                      points
2009                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        R’000
Effect of an increase in basis points on surplus                                                                                                                   150                                 110
Effect of a decrease in basis points on surplus                                                                                                                   (150)                              (110)
2008                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
Effect of an increase in basis points on surplus                                                                                                                   150                                   77
Effect of a decrease in basis points on surplus                                                                                                                   (150)                                (77)

Concentration risk

The Gauteng Partnership Fund’s risks are concentrated in the Gauteng social housing sector (for households earning less than
R8 600 CPIX linked) through structured funding instruments to Social Housing Institutions and Financial institutions with the goal 
to attract fair priced private sector funding. Concentration risk is quantified at an amount of R117 003 711 (2008: R90 992 916) which 
is nominal balance of all investments and loans at year end. 

22.  Fair value adjustments

Other financial assets
          Fair value for loans and receivables                                                                                                                  (7,240,021)                   3,135,458

Refer to note 4 for detail.

23.  Finance costs

Finance lease                                                                                                                                                                             16,537                             6,425
    
Finance cost comprises of interest amortised for the finance lease.

21.  Financial Risk management and objectives (continues)
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24.  Financial and non-financial intruments

2009  
 
 
 
Financial Assets
Available-for-sale
investments 
Intangible assets  
Loans and receivables  
Equipment  
Trade and other  
receivables  
Cash and cash 
equivalents    
Financial liabilities  
Finance lease   
Trade and other
paybles

2008 
 
 
 
Financial Assets
Available-for-sale
investments 
Intangible assets  
Loans and receivables  
Equipment  
Trade and other  
receivables  
Cash and cash 
equivalents    
Financial liabilities  
Finance lease   
Trade and other
payables  

Loans and
receivables

-

-
70,327,218 

-
5,476,612

 
 511,801,713

 
 
-

 -

587,605,543

Loans and
receivables

-

-
50,212,029

-
6,255,630

 
 521,834,502

 
 
-

 -

578,302,161

Other
liabilities

-

-
-
-
-

-
 
 
 -

    (762,548)

  
(762,548)

Other
liabilities

-

-
-
-
-

-
 
 
 -

(31,754,726) 

(31,754,726) 

Available
for-sale
assets

10,035,003

-
-
-
-

 -
 

 -
 -

10,035,003

Available
for-sale
assets

3

-
-
-
-

 -
 

 -
 -

3

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost

-

-
-
-
-

 -

  
 (78,514) 

 -

(78,514)

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost

-

-
-
-
-

 -

  
 (117,850) 

-

(117,850)

Other assets

                       
                         -

          
  181,801

                         -
        1,228,344
                         -

                         -

                         -
          

                      -
         

        1,410,145

Other assets

                       
                         -

   
         230,828

                         -
        1,241,156
                         -

                         -

                         -
                         -

      1,471,984

Total

10,035,003

181,801
70,327,218 

1,228,344
 5,476,612 

511,801,713 
 
 

  (78,514) 
 (762,548)

598,209,629

Total

3

230,828
50,212,029 

1,241,156
 6,255,630 

521,834,502 
 
 

  (117,850) 
(31,754,725)

547,901,573
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24.  Financial and non-financial intruments

Set out below is a comparison by class of carrying amounts and fair values of all of the Gauteng Partnership Fund’s financial instruments, 
that are carried in the financial statements:

The fair value of shares which are not listed are estimated using the discounted cash flow valuation model based on assumptions that are 
supported by by a combination of market and non-market observable market inputs. The valuation is based on projected sustainable cash 
flows taking into account views of future performance as at 31 March 2009. The discount rates used to present value these cash flows takes 
both systematic and unsystematic risks into account. Systematic risk is market risk or the risk that cannot be diversified away. Unsystematic 
risk is asset specific risk.

The fair value of loans and receivables has been determined by discounting future cash flows over the period of the loan at the prime rate at 
date of inception thereof.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments or fair value. The discount rate used in calculating the 
present value of minimum lease payments is 14.5% (which is the prime rate at date of inception ).

                                                                                                                                                        Carrying amount                                                     Fair value

Financial Assets                                                                                                                      2009                                  2008                               2009                      2008
Available-for-sale investments                                                                            10,035,003                                        3                   10,035,003                             3
Loans and receivables                                                                                            70,327,218                     50,212,029                   70,327,218           50,212,029
Trade and other receivables                                                                                   5,476,612                        6,255,630                     5,476,612             6,255,630
Cash and cash equivalents                                                                                 511,801,713                   521,834,502                511,801,713         521,834,502
                                                                                                                                  597,640,546                  578,302,164              597,640,546       578,302,164

Financial Liabilities
Finance lease                                                                                                                   78,514                            117,850                         78,514                  117,850
Trade and other payables                                                                                         762,548                       33,983,922                      762,548            33,983,922
                                                                                                                                         841,062                      34,101,772                      841,062          34,101,772     

Fair value of financial instruments

Valuation
technique-
market
observable
inputs

-

70,327,218
70,327,218

 
 
 

 78,514

Valuation
technique-
market
observable
inputs

-

 50,212,029
 50,212,029

    

 117,850

2009

Valuation technique 
combination of mar-
ket and non-market
observable inputs

10,035,003 

- 
 10,035,003 

 
 
 -

2008

Valuation
techniquen on-
market
observable
inputs

  3

-
 3
 
 
 
 -

Total

- 

50,212,029
50,212,029

 
    

 
117,850

 
 
Financial Assets
 
 

Available-for-sale 
investments
Loans and receivables
 
 
  
Financial liabilities
Finance lease

Total

10,035,003 
 

70,327,218 
 80,362,221

 

78,514

24.  Financial and non-financial intruments (continues)
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25.  Impairment losses on loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables                                                                                                                             -                      (292,999)

The prior year amount relates to Housing Company Tshwane. The entire amount                                                      -                                     -
was an initial grant that was subject to terms and conditions. As at 2007 year end,
these terms and conditions were not complied with therefore the amount was
converted to a loan and an impairment allowance was provided.

                                                                                                                                                                                                                  -                      (292,999)

The 2008 amount relates to Housing Company Tshwane for non compliance with loan agreement. Management actions to recover 
the loan has been unsuccessful to date therefore an impairment allowance was provided. Please refer to note 4.

26.  Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure                                                                                                                                                                         -                       203,939

This expenditure arose due to the termination of the previous internal auditors and the necessary appointment of the current internal 
auditors to ensure continuity of the internal audit function. This decision was taken by the Accounting Authority and approved as 
such. This amount was disclosed as irregular based on external audit. Gauteng Partnership Fund requested condonation of this 
expenditure by National Treasury. The response from National Treasury was that this expenditure is not irregular, as the decision 
making vests with management.

27.  Impairment loss reversal

Impairment loss reversal                                                                                                                                                 4,596,395                                      -
The current year reversal relates to Brickfields Housing Company (Pty) Ltd.
Refer to note 4.

28. Prior period error

Transfer of available for sale asset reserve from accumulated surplus

Accumulated surplus
As previously stated                                                                                                                                                                           -                  77,031,197
Less: Transfer to available for sale reserve                                                                                                                                   -                  17,999,997
                                                                                                                                                                                                                  -                 95,031,194

In prior years the available for sale reserve was included in the accumulated surplus. This reserve has now been transferred out of the 
accumulated surplus and disclosed separately in accordance with Generally Recognised Accounting  Practice 1 (GRAP 1).
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The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited.

Revenue
Interest received (trading)                                                                                                                                            68,579,178                    50,909,039
Government grants                                                                                                                                                         31,936,391                    43,154,390
                                                                                                                                                             13                         100,515,569                   94,063,429

Other income
Gains on disposal of equipment                                                                                                                                         36,550                            13,647
Gross income                                                                                                                                                                      100,552,119                  94,077,076

Expenses (Refer to page 76)                                                                                                                                      ( 23,668,252)                (13,334,265)
Operating surplus                                                                                                                                                              76,883,867                   80,742,811
Finance costs                                                                                                                                                                           (16,537)                            (6,425)
Fair value adjustments                                                                                                                                                   (7,240,021)                      3,135,458
Impairment loss reversal                                                                                                                                                 4,596,395                                        -
Impairment losses on loans                                                                                                                                                            -                         (292,999)
                                                                                                                                                                                             (2,660,163)                    2,836,034
Surplus for the year                                                                                                                                                           74,223,704                  83,578,845
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The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited.

Operating expenses

Auditors remuneration                                                                                                                                                  (1,230,519)                     (754,166)

Bank charges                                                                                                                                                                           (26,440)                       (11,281)

Capacity Grant - Madulamoho Housing Company                                                                                                  (393,221)                     (742,156)

Capacity Grant - Yeast City Housing                                                                                                                                (78,750)                     (259,869)

Computer expenses                                                                                                                                                             (32,073)                        (34,597)

Consulting fees                                                                                                                                                                 (2,641,746)                 (2,090,772)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments                                                                                                            (710,250)                    (432,967)

Entertainment                                                                                                                                                                      (132,089)                       (46,267)

Grant Kliptown Project                                                                                                                                                   (6,750,000)                                    -

Insurance                                                                                                                                                                               (184,385)                     (172,325)

Lease rentals on operating lease                                                                                                                                    (286,380)                    (288,595)

Magazines, books and periodicals                                                                                                                                   (42,407)                       (39,316)

Marketing                                                                                                                                                                           (1,128,073)                    (559,617)

Office cleaning                                                                                                                                                                          (7,277)                         (9,603)

Offsite Storage                                                                                                                                                                          (7,967)                          (5,502)

Petrol and oil                                                                                                                                                                             (2,860)                          (4,821)

Postage                                                                                                                                                                                       (4,523)                          (2,064)

Printing and stationery                                                                                                                                                     (224,208)                     (169,782)

Repairs and maintenance                                                                                                                                                (397,870)                     (391,836)

Salaries                                                                                                                                                                                (7,038,045)                 (5,639,991)

Secretarial fees                                                                                                                                                                       (97,222)                       (22,610)

Subscriptions                                                                                                                                                                            (7,320)                                     -

Telephone and fax                                                                                                                                                              (344,174)                     (345,949)

Training                                                                                                                                                                                  (439,688)                     (366,008)

Travel                                                                                                                                                                                         (44,196)                       (31,864)

Travel - overseas                                                                                                                                                                    (73,499)                                     -

Trustees remuneration                                                                                                                                                  (1,343,070)                     (912,307)

                                                                                                                                                                                          (23,668,252)               13,334,265)
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